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Attested copy of Certificate of Commencement of Business Annex-4
Attested copy of yearly submission to the Corporate Regulator Annex-5
Attested copy of financial statements Annex-6
Attested copy of the corporate authorization allowing submission Annex-7
of the application
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Resources and expertise available to handle emergency situations Annex-9
Names and business addresses of senior management Annex-10
Directors & PGPL holding more than 10% voting interest Annex-11
Market data Annex-12
Maps issued or certified by the Survey of Pakistan Annex 13
Sources and quality of natural gas Annex 14
Safety and service obligations Annex 15
Specifications of the distribution facilities or pipelines Annex 16




PGP

Pakistan GasPort Limited
Associated House, Seven Egerton Road, Lahore 54000
T: +92 42 3636.8844 / F: +92 42 3636.8742 / Ihr@ag.com.pk

PGPL/OGRA/ 2022/61
March 7, 2022

Mr. Abdul Basit Qureshi

Registrar

Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority
54-B, Fazal-e-Haq Road, Blue Area,
Islamabad, Pakistan

Dear Sir,

Re:  Application for Grant of Natural Gas / RLNG Sale License for Pakistan GasPort
Limited

In response to your letter OGRA-6(1)-PGPC(NG)/2018 dated September 03, 2021.

This is to submit that Pakistan GasPort Limited (“PGPL”) owns 100% of PGP Consortium
Limited (“PGPC”), which owns and operates an LNG Import Terminal at Port Qasim,
Karachi.

PGPC has an Operation and Services Agreement ("OSA") with Pakistan LNG Limited
("PLL") for providing storage and regasification services for LNG.

PGPC had earlier applied for an RLNG Sales Licence, but as advised by Oil & Gas
Regulatory Authority ("OGRA"), PGPL is now submit a fresh application for grant of a
Natural Gas/RLNG Sales Licence.

The Project has a regasification capacity of 750 mmcfd of gas and the OGRA License
No. OGRA-6(1)-LNG/2018, dated Apr. 3, 2018 shows the same.

Under the OSA, PGPCL is obligated to re-gasify and deliver 600 mmscfd of RLNG to PLL.
Considering FSRU regasification capacity of 750 mmscfd, free capacity of up to 150
mmscfd” is available with PGPCL that will be utilized through PGPL or through another
company or through group of companies.

In view of the foregoing, PGPL through this letter is requesting the Authority to kindly issue
us a Natural gas / RLNG sale License/s under the Natural Gas Licensing Rules, 2002 and
Sub-Rule-4 (2)(3)(5).

Please note that during commissioning of the project the regasification capacity was
750 mmscfd as certified by Samsung Heavy Industries Co. Ltd, manufacturer of BW
Integrity. A copy of the Certificate is attached as Annex-]. N




The following documents are submitted:

Rule | Information Required Enclosure Reference
2 Duly signed application as per format given in Annex-2
Schedule-I of Natural Gas Licensing Rules , 2002
3(a) | Attested copy of Applicant 's Memorandum & Article of | Annex-3
Association
3(b) | Attested copy of PGPL 's Certificate of Commencement | Annex- 4
of Business
3(c) | Attested copy of latest yearly submission to the Annex- 5
Corporate Regulator
3(d) | Attested copy of latest audited annual and unaudited Annex- 6
half yearly financial statements e PGPL Consolidated and
Separate Financial
Statements 2019
(Audited)
¢ PGPL Consolidated FS
2020 (Auditors Initialed)
e PGPL Separate FS 2020
(Auditors initialed) -
¢ PGPL Consolidated
Financial Statements
2021 (Unaudited)
e PGPL Separate Financial
Statements 2021
(Unaudited)
e WACC, IRR and NPV
3(e) | Attested copy of the corporate authorization allowing Annex-7
submission of the application
3(f) | In case of subsidiary company, the documents specified | NA
in clauses (a) to (d) pertaining to its holding company
3(g) | Details of consent required under applicable laws, from | NA
persons other than Authority.
3(h) | Details of technical & financial expertise & resources Annex-8
available
3(i) Details of the resources and expertise available to Annex-9
handle emergency situations arising out of natural
calamities, accidental or criminal acts or omissions
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Rule | Information Required Enclosure Reference
3@4) List of Names and business addresses of the applicants' | Annex-10
senior management, including without limitation,
departmental and/or divisional heads.
3(k) | Ifthe applicant or any of its officers or directors Annex-11
Directly, or indirectly, owns, controls holds 10% or
more of the voting interest in any other entity engaged
in the production, transmission, distribution, or sale of
natural gas, or in any person engaged in the financing,
construction, maintenance or operation of such facilities.
3D | Alist of all other applications, petition filed by the PGPL has applied for its 24
applicant which are pending before the Authority LNG Terminal Construction
License at Port Qasim,
which is in process.
But this 2™ terminal license
sho_uld not affect the RLNG
sale license for PGPL.
3(m) | Details of market data Annex-12
LOI from OQ Trading
Limited for supply of 1
million tons of LNG per year
is attached.
For RLNG supplies, letters
from Universal Gas
Distribution Company and
OTO Pakistan is attached.
3(n) Such other information or documents as the Authority PGPL will provide any -
may require, from time to time further information/data on
demand from Authority as
per requirement.
5(a) | Maps issued or certified by the Survey of Pakistan, Annex-13

drawn to an appropriate scale showing the territory
within which the applicant wishes to distribute and sell
natural gas; details of area where the distribution
facilities are or are proposed to be located and the
principal geographical features of the said areas.

The enclosed map
mentioning the location of
our facilities after which
RLNG either will be sold at
SSGC Custody Transfer
Station (CTS) or will be sold
to customers using gas
network.




Rule | Information Required

Enclosure Reference

and service obligations prescribed by Authority.

5(b) | Details of the sources and quality of supply of natural Annex-14
gas including forecasts of the available quantity from RLNG specifications will be
such sources. in compliance to OGRA
standards.
5(c) | Detail of how the applicant proposes to meet the safety | Annex-15

5(d) | Technical specifications of the distribution facilities or
pipelines for the sale of natural gas.

(As per OGRA requirement, applicant is to provide
MOU with SNGPL and/or SSGC).

RLNG either will be sold at
SSGC Custody Transfer
Station (CTS) or will be sold
to customers using Sui’s
networks.

A pay order number 15877773 amounting to Rs 500,000/- dated 4-Mar-22 of license fee is

attached with the letter.

The Economic Coordination Committee ("ECC") and the Government has approved the
utilization of Excess Capacity by private sector and in view of the ongoing energy crisis in
the Country, it is in the national interest to utilize the available capacity at our terminal as

soon as possible.

We submit that our application is complete in every way except for non-mandatory (not listed
as a requirement in the LNG Policy or Rules) Memorandums of Understanding (“MOU”)
with Sui Southern Gas Company Limited ("SSGC") and/or Sui Northern Gas Pipelines
Limited ("SNGPL"). Be that as it may, we have requested both companies to kindly sign an

MOU and evidence thereof is attached at Annex-16.

In view of the foregoing it is requested that our application may kindly be processed for

issuance of License expeditiously.

Yours truly,
For Pakistan GasPort Limited

N fe

Igb# Z. Ahmad
Chief Executive
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SN2118 (BW INTEGRITY)

o)A T(220207) / SHEAPM(RAPYL) [/ 2017-12-23

REGAS PERFORMANCE TEST

Date : 22nd Dec 2017

Date Test tem | Target capacity | Duration Test resuit
Min Capacity Test - One Train
- Asingle Train| 1A ) , i
(Train to be selected by BW randamly) 50 MMSCFD 0.5 Hour Accepted ( 0 ). Notaccepted ( )
|
Capacity Test- Ona Skid
- Asingle Skid [ Skid 1 (1A/18) ) .
| (skid to be selected by BWW randomy) 250 MMSCFD 0.5 Hour Accepted { ' ), Not accepted ( b
Capacity Test - Combination of 2 Skids
- A combination of 2 Skids iy
[ Skid /2 (1A/18 1 2A28) ) 500 MMSCFD 2 howurs Accepted ( (), Not accepted { )
(skid to be selected by BW randomly)
Capacity Teat- All 3 Skids
= S - [ —
27nd - All 3 skids 750 MMSCFD ‘ 1 hours Accepted ( ), Not accepted { 3
Dec.
e Start - Stop - PSD
- Normal Start of Regas System i |
N aiin mod Chack OFf 125 ~ 250 MMSCFD | Accepted ( ) ), Notaccepted ( )
L___Pi—— —
- Controllad Stop incl. Restart N Y :
Verification and Check OFf 0~ 750 MMSCFD Accepted ({ } ), Mot accepied { )
— 4 hours ‘— —
- Procass Shut Down
Test cause 1 (PSD1) 0~ 750 MMSCFD Accepted { 0 }, Not aceepted ( )
‘ Verification and Check Off
|
%Prefereniial Trip 2 Test
I | 5 IR V7S ol { 3
| With 2 (large) MGE feeding l - Due 1o ,g’,;, loading scnédulE
£ Booster pumps, 3 SW Lifting pumps: BW Integrity should keep the continuous
— one MGE shutdewn, PMS shall unload 0 - 300 MMCSFD 2 hours sand out rate.
the Electric power system in order to ‘ Controt logic in 1AS is reflected in BW Integrity.

prevent a blackout. l Preterential Trip was tested in Sister Vessel
(BW Singapore) __
BW INTEGRITY EGh
SN
ﬂ,L) | P )
N -
' Ngass

SAMSUNG HEAVY INDUSTRIES CO. LTD

—\S !-'(L(aé_
SHL ™
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SCHEDULE - |
[see Rule 4 (2)]

OIL AND GAS REGULATORY AUTHORITY

Application Form

Ref: No. PGPL/OGRA/2022/61A
March 7, 2022

1. Name of the Company (Applicant)
Pakistan GasPort Limited (PGPL)

2. Company’s full Address along with telephone, fax, email and web details :

Full Address : Associated House, 7-Egerton Road, Lahore
Email Address : lhr@ag.com.pk

Office Tel. No. : 042-36306106, 36306108

Office Fax No. : 042-36368742

3. Name, Title and authorized signatures of the Company's Chief Executive.

Name : Mr. Igbal Z. Ahmed
Title : Chief Executive

Specimen Signature 2m EE

4. Names and addresses of current Directors of the Applicant:

Name Addresses
Mr. Igbal Z. Ahmed : 26/3 Sarwar Road, Lahore Cantt.
Mr. Fasih Uddin Ahmed : 26/3 Sarwar Road, Lahore Cantt.
Mr. Razi Uddin Ahmed : 26/3 Sarwar Road, Lahore Cantt.
Qazi Humayun Fareed : 77/H, Sarfaraz Rafique Road, Lahore Cantt.
Mian Amer Mahmood : 64-E-1, Gulberg lll, Lahore.
Mr. Asim Iftikhar : House No.169 Street# 4, Cavalry Ground Lahore, Cantt.

Mr. M.N Beg : 15, D-6, Asad Jan Road, Lahore, Cantt.



5. Name and address of any person or corporate body with a holding of more than one percent
interest (1%) or more in the Applicant (attached with this Annex).

1. Regulated Activity for which a license is sought:
a) Transmission License
b) Distribution License
c) Sale License v
d) Integrated License
e) Project License

2. Nature of license applied for (if exclusive, please provide detailed justifications):

Exclusive v
Non-Exclusive

3. Period for which license is sought: From: Mar. 7, 2022
To: Mar. 6, 2042

4. Details of any license held, applied for, or applied for and refused under these rules, by the
applicant or any of the interested parties or any of their affiliated or related undertakings.

Entity License Specification

e Pakistan Gasport Limited LNG Terminal Construction at PQ (in process)
e Gwadar GasPort (Pvt) Limited Setting-up of LNG Terminal at Gwadar (in process)

For Pakistan GasPort Limited

Igbal Z Ahmed
Chief Executive




PGP

Pakistan GasPort Limited
Associated House, Seven Egerton Road, Lahore 54000
T: +02 42 3636.8844 / F: +92 42 3636.8742 / Ihr@ag.com.pk
Pakistan GasPort Limited ("PGPL")
Detail of Addresses of persons holding more than 1% interest in PGPL

Sr. No Name Address Shares in
%
1 Jamshoro Joint Venture Associated House, 7-Egerton Road,
Limited Lahore. 26.28%
2 Mian Amer Mahmood 64-E-1, Gulberg III, Lahore.
24.49%
3 Innovacy Petroleum Pvt. Ltd | House 4, St. 62, F-8/4, Islamabad. .
. 0
4 Fasih Ahmed 26/3, Sarwar Road, Lahore, Cantt.
5.36%
5 Razi Ahmed 26/3, Sarwar Road, Lahore, Cantt.
5.36%
) Attig Ahmed 26/3, Sarwar Road, Lahore, Cantt.
5.36%
7 Sadia Ahmed 26/3, Sarwar Road, Lahore, Cantt,
5.36%
. Leicester Court, Suite 2, Edger Bernard
8 . . t] E
Trafigura Holdings Limited | o, oo\ 7ira GZR 1702, Malta. s 26%
9 Ahmed Omer Khan szl I.S lar.nabad Highway,
Rawalpindi. 3.66%
10 Syed Hasnain Ali H no. 34, Shah_daab Aziz Avenue,
Canal Bank, Gilberg-V 2.60%
11 Saman Ahsan 5-Canal Bank Zaman Park, Lahore
2.56%
12 Bilal Afzal H. No.28-C, Model Town, Lahore.
— 1.79%
03 Rehmat Khan Fazaia {sla@abad Highway,
L Rawalpindi 1.59%

QM“
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THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984
== 00 -
(PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)

-1 0 -~
Memorandum of Association

of

PAKISTAN GASPORT LIMITED

[t

v

'The name of the Company is *“Pakistan Gasport Limited”.

The Registered Oftice of the Company will be situated at Lahore, Punjab.

The objects for which the Company is established are:

To set up, eslablish, build, design, construct, engineer, maintain,
the Liquefied Natural Gas (LLNG) ‘Terminal Facility which will
among other things, jetty and gas (ransmission system, equipmer

To acquire, import, procure, process, re-gasity, store, transfer, transmit, distribute,
and sell re-gasified LNG (RLNG) to buyers, and to extract, process, import, export,
traasler, disteibute, sell, export LPG to buyers.

To carry on the business of sale of LNG, RLNG, CNG, LPG and other natural gas
fiquids to subsidiaries, associates, whole scllers, agents, relailers, consumers,
Government and non-Government corporations and entities.

To carry on the business as importers, exporters, processors, distributors,
contractors, stockers, transporters, sellers or otherwise deal in LNG, RLNG, CNG,
1.PG, natural gas liquids and other allied products in Pakistan or anywhere in the
world.

Ta establish, maintain and sublet transportation services for the purpose of
transporting products including LNG, RLNG, CNG, LPG and other natural gas
liguids of all kinds and to purchase, charter, hire, build, own, operate or otherwise
acquire marine and land wransportation vessels, tankers, vehicles, pipeline systems
accordingly.

2 W)
g Pakistan GasPort Fimi¢d

K
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6.

10.

2

To, among other things, tender, offer, accept, purchase, and enter inlo joint venture

agreements to construct, own and operate LNG, RLNG ,CNG, LPG and other

natural gas liquids fucilities for their extraction, processing, (transmission,
distribution and sale. To set up terminals, plants, workshops, stations and other
facilitics to purchase, acquire, produce, manufacture, refine, treat, purify, blend,
reduce, distil, store, transport, market, distribute, supply, sell and otherwise dispose
oft and generally trade in any and all kinds of petroleum products.

To acquire by concessions, grant, purchase, barter, lease, license or otherwise, either
absolutely or conditionally and either solely or jointly with others, any lands,
buildings, mines, minerals, potteries, pottery works, easements, way leaves,
privileges, rights, licenses, power and concessions and in particular, any water
rights, oil and gas exploration and extraction rights, licenses, power and concessions
and in particular, any water rights, oil and gas exploration and extraction rights or
concessions for the purpose of oblaining motive power and any machinery, plant,
utensils, goods, trademarks or other intellectual property rights and other movable
and immovable property of any description which the Company may think
necessary or convenient for purpose of its business or which may seems to the
Company capable of being turned to account, oy Regig,

Lah0r994°9

To manufacture and deal in ali kinds of plants, machinery Yoo ls, ilsils
and things necessary or convenient for carrying on (e off
business.

=y

To enter into contracts, joint ventures or arrangements NWith &yl Bt or
Authority, central, provincial, municipal, local or otherwisSdic, ° or any
corporalion, companies or persons that may seem conducive e Company’s

objects or any of them and to obtain any licenses, permits, authorizations as may be
required.

T'o pay and incur the costs and expenses relating to incorporation of the Company.

. To acquire and undertake the whole or any part of the business, property and

liabilities of any person or company or companies carrying on or proposing 10 carry

on any business which the Company is authorized to carry on or possessed of

property/properties suitable for the purposes of the Company, or which can be
carried on in conjunction therewith or which is capable of being conducted so as
directly or indirectly to benefit the Company.

. To advance money or give credit to such persons or companies on such terms as

may seem expedient, and to guarantee the performance of any contract or obligation
and the payment of money ol or by any such persons or compdn@ and generally to
give guarantees and indemnities.

v



19.

21.

. To open accounts with Bank{s) and to draw, make, accepd

. To guaraniee the performance of the contracts and obligations of the Company in

relation to the payment of any loan, debenture, TFCs, obligations or securities by or
in favour ol the Company and (o guarantee the payment or return on such
investment or dividends on any share of the Company and to issue indemnities for
and guarantee the liabilities of associated companies and concerns, to grant advance
or credit to associated companies and concerns and/or lo offer its assets and
propertics as security for borrowings and obligations of associated companies and
concerns, subsidiaries and companies and concerns in which a Director or member
of the Company is also a Director, partner or member.

. To purchase, take on lease or in exchange, hire a property or properties, movable or

immovable, in furtherance of objects herein contained.

negotiate and discount cheques, promissory notes, bills/dd ! _
warrants, deposit notes, debentures, letter of credit an ‘gthe‘? AT K in% ments
K &

and securities. g A
-, ¢
®

.

. To sell or otherwise dispose of the whole or any pA X 4 akigy/ of the

Company, cither together or in portions for such conside
think fit.

.To pay all costs, charges and expenses preliminary or incidental incurred in

formation or about the promotion and establishment of the Company and to
remunerate any person, (irm or company for services rendered or to be rendered in
or about the formation or promation of the Company or the conduct of its business.

. To give any servant or employee of the Company commission in the profits of the

Company's business or any branch thereof and for the purpose (o enter into any
agreement or scheme of arrangement as the Company may deem fit and to procure
any servants or employees of the Company to be insured against risk of accident in
the course of their employment by the Company.

To distribute any of the Company’s property and assets among the members in
specie or in any manner whatsoever,

20. To cause the Company 1o be registered or recognized in any foreign country.

To grant pensions, gratuilies, bonus, or other payment to any employees of the
Company or their relatives or dependents or connections and to contribute to
provident funds which may be created to benefit such persons or to grant loans to
such persons with or without interest and to contribute to social, religious or

charitable works and organizations to advance the interest of the Company or its
@

members. o
& §

'
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24,

26.

27.

28.

. To toster, encourage and conduct research work in the field

4

To obtain local and/or foreign currency loans from scheduled banks and financial
institutions for the purposes of’ purchase, manutacture, market, supply, export and
import of machinery, construction of factory/building and for the purpose of working
capital or for any other purposc.

23. To borrow or raise money by means of loans or other legal arrangements from banks,

or other financial institutions, or Directors in such manner as the Company may think
[it and in particular by issue of debenture stock, and to mortgage, charge or assign or
create other security inlerest over the whole or any part of the property, assets or
revenue of the Company, present or future, or transfer or convey the same absolutely
or in trust as may seem expedient and to purchase, redeem or pay off any such
securities.

To act as representatives or agents for any person, firm or company and Lo undertake
and perform as sub-contractors, and also act through or by means of agents or sub-
contractors and 1o do all or any of the things mentioned herein in any part of the world
and cilher alone or in collaboration with others and by or through agents, sub-
contractors or otherwise.

Company.

To carry on any other business which seem to the Compdgk
conveniently carried on in connection with its business or A
indirectly to enhance the value ol or render profitable any of the
or rights.

To do all or any of the above things and all such other things as are incidental or may
be thought conducive to the attainment of the above objects or any of them or are
calculated (o add to the income or value of assels of the Company, and as principals,
agents, contractors, or trustees and by or through trustees, or agents, and either alone
or in conjunction with others, and the intention is that the objects set forth in each of
the several paragraphs of this Memorandum are independent of each other, shall have
the widest possible construction and shall not be limited or restricted by reference to
or inference from the terms of any other paragraph of this clause or the name of the
Company.

To issue Shares with different rights, restrictions and privileges, including but not
limited to different voling rights ; voting rights disproportionate to the paid-up value
of shares held ; voting rights for specific purposes only ; or no voting rights at all ;
different rights for entitlement of dividend, rights shares or bonus shares or
entitlement to receive the notices and to attend the general meetings ; rights and
privileges for indefinite period, for a limited specified period or for @;h periods as
may from time to time be determined by the Company ; and diffegw’ht man&cr and
mode of redemption. N &

& &
%e
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V.

20.

30.

Notwithstanding anything stated in any object clause, the Company shall obtain
such other approved or licence fron the competent authority, as may be required
under any law for the time being in force, to undertake a particular business.

[t is declared that notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing objects
clauses of this Memorandum of Association nothing contained therein shall be
construed as empowering the Company to undertake or 1o indulge in business of
banking company, banking, leasing, investment, managing agency or insurance
business directly or indirectly as restricted under the law or any unlawful operations.

The liability of the members is limited

The Authorized Capital of the Company is Rs. $§,366,000,000 (Rupees Five
Thousand Three Hundred Sixty Six Million only) divided into 450,000,000 B Class
Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10/- each, 86,400,000 A Class Non-voting Ordinary Shares
of Rs. 10/- cach and 200,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-each with powers to

respectively such preferential, qualified or special rights, pri & )
may be determined by or in accordance with the Articles of A%socid NGl

being, and o vary, modity or abrogale any such rights, pr
such manner as may for the time being be provided by the A} ’
the Company.



We, the several persons whose names and addresses are subscribed
desirous of being formed into a Company, in pursuance of this Memo,
Association, and we respectively agree to take the number of shares in Ca

6

Company as sct opposile Lo our respeclive names.

-9
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w, ki
gldu:%' bt

Father's / Husband’s
Full Name o 0 0 L SE 3

Nattonality :

Occeupution

e and Suttaing | Naiwmnalily Numiber
e & P Futher 5/ with any Reswentiul Address of shares
artat Name | i Fotl ot Occupaiion (i Full ) tiken by Signalure
U iaok Latteia Navwnadiny cich sub-
andt HIC W scriber \
|
POMROIQHAL 7. Zafar-ud-Din | Pakistani Business 2673, 3,000
AbIRII Aluned Sarwar Roacd, Theee
(SRR KA Lahore - Canu. ‘Thousand
3320114530061 B Class
Otdinary
Shares
20 MR FASHI-UD- bl Z.. Pakistani Business 26173, 1,000
DIN ATIMED Ahmed Sarwar Road, One
CNLC # Latore - Cantt, Thousand
3320054 9-7 B Class
Ordinary
Shares
NNORAZLUD- Iybal £ Pukistuini Business 2673, 1,000
LN ALIMIED L Atoned Sarwar Road, One
[ RO Lahore - Canut. Thousand
SN 3500 9 i3 Class
Ordinary
Shares
5,000]| Q1€ TIED TO RE TRUE GG H
Total Number of Five ‘!
Shares Taken Thousar i
S ——— = i
i
A i
Dated thiis .o duy ot I‘
I
Witness to the above signatures : Signature ... o

Full Address ;... . SESE— ———

asPort Lam d
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THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984
-0 -~
(PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED BY SIIARES)

-l O -
Articles of Association
of

PAKISTAN GASPORT LIMITED

INTERPRETATION

1. The regulations in Table "A" in the First Schedule to the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 shall not apply to the Company except as reproduced
herein.

2. In these Articles, unless the context or the subject matter otherwise
requires:-

(a) "Articles" means these Articles as originally framed or as from time
to time altered in accordance with law,

(b) "Board Meeting" or “Board” means a meeting of the Directors duly
called and constituted or as the case may be, the Directors
assembled al a Boar(d.

(c) "Directors" means the Directors tor the time being of the Company
or as the case may be, the Direclors assembled at a Board.

(ca)*Legend” mceans the words “The transfer of the shargk

Company are subject to the resirictions impose

Shareholders Agreement dated November 3, 2016 ¢

between Jamshoro Joint Venture Company Limited and 'n RS ,}‘
'K)a—b Hoiding Limited and certain other shareholders of the (\{§& pWM
—  which shall be printed or deemed to be printed on cady! L SECPIR y

Certificale. S

{d) "Non-voting Ordinary Shares" means A Class Ordinary Shares of
the Company with rights and privileges as attached to B Class
Ordinary Shares subject to the limitations / restrictions that holder
ol A Class Ordinary Shares shall not be entitled to receive notice,
attend General Meetings and vote at the meetings of the
shareholders of the Company, except as otherwise provided by the

Pakistan GagPygrt ij{‘tgeh}
b

Conm\pany/Secretary
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Companies Ordinance, 1984 whereby the holders of such Shares
would be entitled to vote separately as a class i.e. provisions with
respect 1o voting entitlement of shareholders of a particular kind or
class on matters / issues affecting substantive rights or liabilities of
that particular kind or class of shareholders.

(¢) "Ordinance” means the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or any
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in torce.

(f) "Register" means, unless the context otherwise requires, the register
of members (o be kept pursuant to Section 147 of the Ordinance.

(g) "Seal”" means the common or official Seal of the Company.
(h) "Section" means Section of the Ordinance.

(i) "Special Resolution" mncans the special resolution of the Company
as defined in Section (2) (1) (36) of the Ordinance.

(ia)"Share Certificate” means each share certificate relating to the
shates issued as an ordinary share held by a member in the
Company.

(j) Words importing masculine gender include the feminine gender.

(k) Words importing singular number include the plural number and
vice versd.

Company Limited ("JJVL"), Trafigura Holding Limj
("Trafigura”) and certain other shareholders of the Company

(1) Expression referring to writing shall, unless the contrary
appears, be construed as including references to [[dfint]
lithography, photography and other modes or represg uing%
reproducing werds in a visible form. \

enti

(m)Words importing persons shall include bodics corporate.

(n) The head notes are inscrted for convenience and shall not affect the
construction of these Articles.

(0) Unicss the context otherwise requires words or expressions
contained in these Articles shall have the same meaniu& as in the
Ordinance. -

B b

%
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PUBLIC COMPANY

3. ‘The Company is a Public Company within the meanings of Section2(1)

(30) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984,

CAPITAL

The Authorized Capital of the Company is 5,366,000,000 (Rupees Five
Thousand Three Hundred Sixty Six Million only) divided into 450,000,000
B Class Ordinary Shares of Rs, 10/- each, 86,400,000 A Class Non-voting
Ordinary Shaves of Rs. 10/- each and 200,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-
cach with such preferential gualification or special rights, privileges,
conditions or resirictions or postponement or rights as the company may
determine from time to time by special resolution, with the powers 1o
increase or reduce the share capital and to divide the share capital for the
time being into several Classes in so far as prescribed by law, to redeem
any of its shares and to attach thereto respectively such preferential,
qualified or special rights, privileges conditions or restrictions or
postpencment of rights and to vary, maodify or abrogate any such rights, as
may be determined by or in accordance with the Companies Ordinance,
1984 and the Articles of Association of the Company.

(a) Subject to Section 90 and any rules in that regard made under the
Ordinance, and without prejudice to any special rights previously
conferred on ihe holders of any existing shares or class of shares,
any share in the Company may be issucd with different rights,
restrictions and privileges, including but not limited to the=
following as may be approved by the Company by sp#Cas
resolution.

(i) different voting rights ; voting rights disproportionf
paid-up value of shares held; voting rights fo
purposes only ; or no voting rights at all ;

(ii) different rights for entitlement of dividend, rights shar®®
honus shares or entittement to receive the notices and 0
attend the general mectings ;

(iii) rights and privileges for indefinite period, for a limited
specified period or for such periods as may from time to time
be determined by the Company ; and

(iv) different manner and mode of redemption, including
redemption in accordance with the provisions of these
Articles, subject to Sections 85 and 95 (4), including@ut not

<
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limited to, by way of conversion into shares with such rights
and privileges as determined by the Company in the manner
and mode provided in these Articles.

(b) The respective rights of the preference shareholders, the B Class

ordinary shareholders and the A Class Non-voting ordinary
shareholders as to voting rights, income, redemption and capital
are as follows:

(i) As regards voting rights, the holders of the preference shares
shall not be entitled to receive notice of, attend, or vote at, any
general meeting of the Company, except as otherwise
provided by the Ordinance, whereby the holders of such
shares would be entitled to vote separately as a class, that is,
with respect to voting entitlement of the preference
shareholders on matters aftecting, respectively, their
substantive rights and liabilities.

(ii) As regards income, the profits which the Company may
determine to distribute in respect of any financial year or other
period for which the accounts shali be made up shall be
applied in the following order of priority .-

(a) in paying the holders of the preference shares the right to
a cumulative preferential dividend as determined by the
Roard on the capital paid up thereon payable as regards
ecach financial year out of the profits of the Company
resolved to be distributed in respect of that year, but shgy
not be entitled to any further participation in profits e
participatory), redeemable; and 1

{(b) Subject to the rights of any class of shares for th (j,’im%,
being issued, in distributing the balance among V.;lhem& : o
holders of the ordinary shares according to the am Forl 5
paid up on the ordinary shares held by them respecliv

(ili) As regards conversion, the Company may partly or wholly
convert the prelerence shares at the option of the Company in
accordance, respectively, with the tcrms and conditions of
their issue.

(iv) As regards redemplion, subject to Section 83, the Company
may, upon giving the holders of the shares to be redeemed &
notice in writing, redeem the whole or any parts of the.xf

) ﬁé&é
& v o
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5. The Directors shall, as regards any allotments of shares du
such of the provisiens of Section 68 1o 73 as may be ap
Company. The minimum subscription upon which the
proceed 1o make the first allotment has been fixed at Rs. 35,00

S5a

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

5

preference shares in accordance, respectively, with the terms
and conditions of their issue.

As regards capilal, on a return of capital in a winding up or
otherwise (except upon the redemption of shares of any class
of preference shares or the purchase by the Company of its
own shares), the surplus assets of the Company remaining
alter payment of its liabilities shall be applied in the following
order of priority :-

(8) in paying lo the holders of the preference shares, the
capital paid up on the sume without any further right to
participate in profils or assets ; and

(b) subject to the rights of any other class of shares for the
time being issued, in distributing the balance amongst
the holders of the ordinary shares according 1o the
amounts paid up on the ordinary shares held by them
respectively.

As regards entitlement to bonus or right shares, the holders of
preference shares shall not be entitled to bonus or right shares
in the event that the Company increases its capital by the issue
of further shares or otherwise.

As regards B Class Ordinary Shares, already issued by the
Company or which may be issued from time to time, the same
carry all rights including the right to profits, votes ang_oths
benefits. eoistratio
As regards A Class Ordinary Shares, the same i

voling Ordinary Shares.

Thirty Five Thousand only).

Except as otherwise permitted under, or required by, the Shareholders
Agreement (as defined below), all subscribers  shall maintain  their
respective shareholdings in the Company and shall not transfer wholly or
partly their shares to third parties without the clear written consent of the
other subscribers. Except as otherwise permitted under, or required by, the
Sharcholders Agreement (as defined below), the other subscribers shall
have unanimous right to buy the shares of that subscriber who intends to
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dispose off his holdings and if the other subscribers clearly deny in writing
only then the sharcholder intending to dispose off his shares shall have
right to sell his holding to anyone else. In addition to the foregoing, no
shareholder shall transfer its shareholding to a business competitor of JIVL,
or Trafigura or any of their respective subsidiaries.

[very person whose name is entered as a member in the Register shall,
without payment, be entitled to receive within ninety days afier allotment
or within forty-five days of the application for registration of transfer, a
Share Certificate under the Seal specifying the share ar shares held by him
and the amount paid thereon. Provided that, in respect of a share or shares
held jointly by several persons, the Company shall not be bound to issue
more than one Share Certificate, and delivery of a Share Certificate for a
share to one of several joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to all.

Till the termination of the Shargholder Agreement, all Share Certificates
shall bear the Legend and any Share Certificate not bearing the Legend
shall be deemed to have been defaced or destroyed. When any Share
Certificate not bearing the Legend is presented with a transfer deed to the
Company, such Share Certificate and transfer deed shall be deemed to be
defective and invalid.

I a Share Certiticate is defaced, lost or destroyed, it may be renewed
payment of such fee, if any, not exceeding one rupee, and on such terms, if
any, as o evidence and indemnity and any payment of expenses incurred
by the Company in investigating title as the Directors think fit.

Except (o the extent and in the manner allowed by Section 95, no part of
the funds of the Company shall be employed in the purchase of, or in loans
upon the security of, the Company's shares.

The instrument of transfer of any share in the Company shall be ex
both by the transferor and transferee and the transferor shall be dee
remain holder of the share until the name of the transferee is entered{jw th
Register in respect thereof. %

wransfer deed is defective or invalid or executed in violation of these
Articles of Association. If any transfer of shares is proposed to be made
which is contrary to the legend, then the transfer deed attached or relating
thereto shall be deemed to be defective and invalid. The Directors may
also suspend the registration of transfer prior to the determination of
entitlement or rights of the shareholders by giving seven days previous
notice in the manner provided in the Ordinance. 'The Directors may decline
10 recognize any instrument of transfer unless the duly stamped instrument
of transfer is accompanied by a valid Share Certificate of the share to




16.

. A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or insc

27

7

which it relates, and such other evidence as the Directors may reasonably
require to show the right of the transferor to make the transfer.

If the Directors refuse to register a transfer of shares, they shall within

thirty (30) days after the date on which the transfer deed was lodged with
the Company send to the transferee and the transferor notice of the refusal
inchicating the defect or invalidity to the transferee, who shall, after removal
ol such defect or invaiidity be cntitied to re-lodge the transler deed with the
Company.

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

_The executors, administrators, heirs or nominees, as the case may be, of a

deceased sole holder of a share shall be the only persons recognized by the
Company as having any titic to the share. In the case of a share registered
in the name of two or more holders, the SUrVivOr or survivors, or exceutors
or administrators of the deceased shall be the only persons recognized by
the Company as having any title to the share.

. Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or

insolvency ol a member shall, upon such evidence being produced as may
from lime 1o time be required by the Directors, have the right, either to be
repisiered as a member in respect of the share or, instcad of being
registered himseif, to make such transfer of the share as the deceased or
insolvent person could have made before his death or insolvency; but the
Directors shall, in either case have the same right 1o decline or suspend
registration as they would have had in the case of a transfer of the share by
the deceased or insolvent person before the death or insolvency.

of the holder shall be entitled to the same dividends and other adv
to which he would be entitled if he were the registered holder of th 3he
except that he shall not, before being registered as a member in re o}:t
lhe share, be entitled in respect of it to exercise any right conferiNg by
membership in relation to meetings by the Company.

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

CThe Company may {rom time to time by special resolution increase the

Share Capitai by such sum, to be divide into shares of such, amount, as the
resolution shall prescribe.

Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, ali new shares shall, betore
issue, be offered to such persons who as at the dale of the olfer arc entitled
to be offered such shares under law. The offer shall be made by notice
specifying the number of shares offered, and limiting a time within which

&
v )
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the offer if not accepted, will be deemed to be declined and after the
expiration of that time, or on the receipt of an intimation from the persons
to whom the offer is made that he declines to accept the shares offered, the
Directors may dispose of the same in such manner as they think mosl
beneficial to the Company. The Directors may likewise so dispose of any
new shares which (by reason of the ratio which the new shares bear to
shares held by persons entitled to an ofter of new shares) cannot, in the
opinion of the Directors, be conveniently offered under this regulation.

. Subject Lo the provisions of Section 87, the Company may issue ordinary

shares or grant option to convert into ordinary shares the outstanding
bulaince of any loans, advances or credit or other non-interest bearing
securitics and obligations outstanding or having a term of not less than
three years in the manner provided in any contract with any scheduled bank
or financial institution to the extent of twenty percent (20%) of such
balance.

‘The new shares shall be subject to the same provisions with reference to
transfer, transmission and otherwise as the shares in the original share
capital.

. The Company may, by ordinary resolution :-

(a) consolidate and divide its share capital into shares of larger
amount than its existing share; ’

(b) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of s

amount than is fixed by the Company's Memorangisg eg‘ﬁt':tfoqo
Associatien, subject, nevertheless, to the provisions of gaesc of )
of sub-Section (1) of Section 92. @ «

(¢) cancel any shares which, at the date of the resolutic \a\é, ’5'
been taken or agreed to be taken by any person. Ve S

. The Company may, by Special Resolution, reduce its share capits

manner subject to any consent required by law.

GENERAL MEETING

. The statutory General Meeting of the Company shall be held within the
period required by Section 157.

A General Meeting to be called Annual General Meeting, shall be held, in
accordance with the provisions of Section 158, within 18 months from the
date of incorporation of the Company and thereafter once at least in every
year within a period of 4 months following the close of its financial year &



23.

25.

27. No business shall be transacted at any General Meeting unless a quorum of

28,

_ Al business shall be deemed special that is transacted at any Extraordi

9

andnot more than 15 months after the holding of last preceding General
Meeling as may be determined by the Directors.

All General Meetings of the Company other than the Annual General
Meeting shall be called Extraordinary General Meetings.

The Directors may whenever they think fit, call an Cxtraordinary General

Meeting, and lixtraordinary General Meetings shall also be called on such
requisition as is provided by Section 159. If at any time there are not within
Pakistan sutlicient Directors capable of acting to form a quorum, any
Jirector of the Company may call an Extraordinary General Mecting in the
same manner as nearly as possible s that in which Meetings may be called
by the Directors.

NOTICE AND PROCEEDINGS OF GENERAL MEETING

‘T'wenty one days notice at least (exclusive of the day on which the notice is
served or deemed to be served, but inclusive of the day for which notice is
given) specifying the place, the day and the hour of Meeting and, in case of
special business, the general nature of that business, shall be given in the
manner provided by the Ordinance for the General Meeting to such persons
as are, under the Ordinance or under these Articles of Association, entitled
{o receive such notice from the Company ; but the accidental omission to
give notice, or the non-receipt of notice by, any member shall not
invalidate the proceedings at any General Meeting.

Gieneral Meeting, and also all that is transacted al an Annual Ge
Meeting, with the exception of dectaring a dividend, the considera
the accounts, balance sheet and the reports ol the Directors and af
the elcction of Directors, the appointment of, and the fixing
remuncration of the auditors.

QUORUM

members is present at that time when the meeling proceeds to business.
The quorum for a General Meeting shall be at least three members present
personally who represent not less than fifty one per cent of the total voting
power, either of their own account or as proxies.

I within hatf an hour from the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is .
not present, the meeting, if called upon the requisition of members, shall be .-
dissolved; in any other case, it shall stand adjourned to the same day in thes

&y &
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31.
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34.

35.

36.

CA pell may be demanded only in accordance with provisions of Section

10

next week at the same time and place, and, if at the adjourned meeting &
quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for the
meeting, the members present, being not less than two, shall be a quorum.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors, if any, shall preside as Chairman
at every General Meeting of the Company, but if there is no such
Chairman, or if at any meeting he is not present within fifteen minutes after
the time appointed for the mecting, or is unwilling to act as Chairman, any
one of the Directors present may be elected 1o be Chairman, and if none of
the Directors is present, or willing Lo act as Chairman, the members present
shall chioose one of their member to be Chaitrman.

“The Chainman may, with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum 18

present (and shall if so directed by the meeting) adjourn the meeting from
time 1o time but no business shall be wransacted at any adjourned meeting
other than the business left unfinished at the meeting.

VOTES OF MEMBERS

At any General Meeting a resolution put to the vote of the members shall
be decided on a show of hands unless a poll is (before or on the declaration
of the result of the show of hands) demanded. Unless a poll is so
demanded, a declaration by the Chairman that a resoiution has, on a show
ol hands, been carried, or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority,
or lost, and an entry to that eftect in the books of the proceedings of the
Company shall be conclusive cvidence of the fact, without proof of the
number ol proportion of the votes recorded in favour of, or against that
resolution.

167.

.

If a poll is duly demanded, it shall be taken in accordance with the maggsr
Jaid down in Section 168 and the result of the poll shall be deemed =
the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded.

A poll demanded on the election of Chairman or on a questiol
adjournment shall be taken at once.

In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll,
the Chairman of the meeting at which the show of hands takes place, or at
which the poll is demanded, shall have and exercise a second or casting
vole.

On a show of hands every member prescint in person shall have one vote
excepl for election of Directors in which casc the provisions of Section 178

>
¥
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38.

39.

40.

41.

43.

44.

A vole given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of

shall apply. On a potl every member shall have voting rights as laid down
in Scction 160,

In case of joint-holders, the vole of the senior who tenders a vole, whether
in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the
other joint-holders; and for this purpose seniority shall be determined by
the order in which the name stand in the register.

A member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made
by any court having jurisdiction in lunacy, may volc, whether on show of
hands or on a poll, through his administrator or other legal guardian, and
any such administrator or guardian may, on a poll, vote by proxy.

PROXY

On a poll vote may be given either personally or by proxy. Provided that no
body corporate shall vote by proxy as long as a resolution of its Directors
in accordance with the provisions of Section 162 is in farce.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the
appointer or ol his attorney duly authorized in writing. A proxy must be
niember of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other
authority (if any) under which it is signed, ora notarially certified copy of
that power or authority, shall be deposited at the registercd office not less
than forty eight hours before the time for holding the meeting at w -

person named in the instrument proposes to vote and in dejgdd
instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

be valid notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of thd prin
revocation ol the proxy or of the authority under which thi 3
executed, or the transfer of the share in respect of which the pr \ i
provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity, revi
wransfer as aforesaid shall have been received by the Company at thsy
before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which
the proxy is used.

DIRECTORS

Unless otherwise determined by the Company in General Meeting the
number ol Directors shall not be less than three.

The following are the First Directors of the Company who shall hold office
till the first Annual General Meeting.

¥



1. MR. IQBAL Z. AHMED
2.MR. FASIII-CD-DIN AHMED
3.MR. RAZI-UD-DIN AHMED

45. Save as provided in Section 187, no person shall be appointed as a Director
unless he is member of the Company and holds shares of the minimum
value of Rs. 5,000/- in his own name.

46. The remuneration of a Director for performing extra services, including
holding of the office of Chairman and Chief Executive and the
remuneration to be paid to any Dircctor for attending the meetings of the
Directors or a commitiee of Directors shall from time to time be
determined by the Board of Directors in accordance with law.

47. The Director who resides out of station shall also be entitled to be paid
such traveling and other expenses for attending the meeting for the
Company as may be fixed by the Directors from time to time according to
the provisions of the Ordinance.

CHAIRMAN

48. The Directors may from time to time appoint onc of the Directors to be the
Chairman of the Company for a period not exceeding three years on such
terms and conditions as they deem fit. The Chairman shall preside over the
meetings of the Board of Directors and members of the Company. [n his
absence, the Directors may elect any other Director 10 preside over the
Board Meeting. The questions arising at a meeting of the DirectosSEbyisihs
decided by a majority of votes. In the case of equality «/._
Chairman, or the Director presiding over the meeting, as t 4
shall have a casting vote.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

of Directors within fifteen days from the date of incorpors
Company who shall hold oftice till the first Annual General Meeting:

$0. The first Directors including the Chief Executive shall hold office up to the
First Annual General Meeling in accordance with the provisions of the
Ordinance, uniess any one of them resigns earlier or becomes disqualificd
from being Director or otherwise ceases 1o hold office.
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POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

51 ‘T'he business of the Company shall be managed by the Chief Executive
ander the control and supervision of the Board of Directors, who may pay
all expenses incurred in promoting and registering the Company and may -
exercise all such powers of the Company as are not by the Ordinance or
any statutory modification thereof for the time being in force, or by these
regulations, required to be exercised by the Company in General Meeting,
subject nevertheless 1o the provisions of the Ordinance or to any of these
regulations, and such regulations being not inconsistent with the aforesaid
provisions, as may be prescribed by the Company in General Meeting but
no regulation made by the Company in General Meeting shall invalidate
any prior act of the Directors which would have been valid if ihat
regulation had not been made.

MANAGEMENT

52 ‘The whole business and affairs of the Company shall, subject to the control
and supervision of the Board of Directors, be managed and controlied by
ihe Chiel Execulive.

53. Subject to the limit tixed by the Directors, the Chief Executive may from
time to lime raise or borrow any sums of money for and on behalf of the
Company from other companies, banks or financial institutions on such
lerms as may be approved by the Board of Directors from time to tim.€

54. Without prejudice 1o the powers conferred by these Articles, thc Bo

Directors shall have the following powers:- _ 9"5"300,’
o4 "Lahore le)

@
fop i

(a) To take on lease, purchase, erect or otherwise acg
Company any assets, stocks, lands, buildings, prope
privileges which the Company is authorised to acquire
and generally on such terms and conditions as they thi

(b) To let, mortgage, sell, exchange or otherwise dispose o g !,u
or conditionaily all or any part of the assets, stocks, raw mad i fAag
properties, privileges and undertaking of the Company upon such
terms and conditions and for such consideration as they think fit

(¢) To appoint any person or persons to be attorney or attorneys of the
Company for such purposes and with such powers, authorities and
discretions and for such period and subject to such conditions as
they may, from time 1o time, think fit.

(d) To enter into, carry out, rescind or vary all financial arrangements
with any bank, person, company, firm or corporation or in



55. The Board may from time to time borrow any moneys for the puijpg
the Company from its members or from any other persor &
companies, or corporations, Government Agencies, banks, :
institutions or the Directors may themselves lend moneys to the Compahy

56.

57.
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connection with such arrangements to deposit, pledge or
hypothecate property of the Company or the documents
representing or relating to the same.

(¢) To make and give receipts, release and discharge all moneys
payable to the Company and for the claims and demands of the
Company.

(N To compound or allow time for the payment or satisfaction of any
debt due to or by the Company and any claim and demands by or
against the Company and to refer claims or demands by or against
the Company to arbitration and observe and perform the awards.

(g) To institute, prosecute, compromise, withdraw or abandon any legal
proceedings by or against the Company or its affairs or otherwise
concerning the affairs of the Company.

(h) To raise and borrow money from time to time for the purposes of
the Company, on the mortgage of its property or any part thereof
and/or on any bond or debenture payable to bearer otherwise
repayable in such a manner and generally upon such terms as they
think fit.

(i) To open, operate and maintain bank account(s) individually or
jointly as the Board may authorise or to any other person on its
behalf,

BORROWING POWERS

The Board may raisc and secure payment of such sums of money in such
manner and upon such terms and conditions in all respects as it may think
fit, and in particular by the issue of TFC's, bonds, perpetual or redeemable
debentures or by mortgage or charge or other security on the whole or any
part of the property, assets and rights of the Company (both present and
future).

Any TEC's, bonds, debentures or other securities issued or to be issued by
the Company shall be under the control of the Board which may issug m

(517
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59,

60.

61.
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upon such terms and conditions and in such manner and for such
consideration as shall be considered to be for the benefit of the Company.

Any TFC's, bonds, debentures or other securities may be issued with any
special privileges as to redemption, surrender, drawing, convertibility into
shares, attending and voting at General Meetings of the Company,
appointment of Directors, and otherwise, provided that debentures with the
right to vote or to be converted into shares shall be issued with the consent
of the Company in General Meeting in terms of Section 14 of the
Ordinance.

The Directors may from time to time, by Power of Attorney under the
Company's Seal, appoint any person or persons to be the Attorneys af the
Company for such purposes and with such powers, authorities and
discretions (not exceeding those vested in, or exercisable by, the Directors
under these presents) and for such period and subject to such conditions as
the Directors may from time to time thitk fit. Any such attorney(s) may, if
authorized by the Directors, delegate all or any of the powers vested in him
/ them.

The Directors shall duly comply with the provisions of the Ordinance and
in particular with the provisions in regard to the regulation of the
particulars of mortgage and charges affecting the property of the Company
or created by it, to the keeping of a register of the Directors, and ta.the
sending to the Registrar of an annual list of members and a s@ed

particulars relating thereto and notice of any consolidation/of
share capital, or subdivision of shares, and copies of Spg
and a copy of the register of Directors and notifications
therein.

x
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The Directors shall cause minutes to be made in books pR@jde
purpose of: 2k

(a) all appointments of officers made by the Directors ;

(b) the names of the Directors present at each meeting of the Directors
and of any Committee of the Directors ;

(c) all resolutions and proceedings at all meetings of the Company and
of the Directors and of Committees of Directors; an

(d) every Director present at any meeting of Directors or Committee of
Director shall sign his name in a book to be kept for that purpose. o
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63.

64.

66.

67.

A committee may elect a Chairman of its meetings,
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DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

No person shall become a Director of the Company if he suffers from any
of the disabilities or disqualifications mentioned in Section 187 and, if
already a Director, shall cease to hold such office from the date he so
becomes disqualified or disabled. Provided, however, that no Director shall
vacate his office by reason only of his being a member of any company
which has entered into contracts with, or done any work for, the Company
but such Director shall not vote in respect of any such contract or work,
and if he does so vote his vote shall not be counted.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

The Directors may meet together for the dispatch of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate their meetings, as they think fit. The quorum for a
meeting of Directors shall be four Directors. Questions arising at any
meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes. In case of an equality of
votes, the Chairman shall have and exercise a second or casting vote. A
Director may, and the secretary on the requisition of a Director shall, at any
time, summon a meeting of Directors. It shall not be necessary to give
notice of a meeting of Directors to any Director for the time being absent
from Pakistan.

The Directors may delegate any of their powers not
exercised in their meeting to committees consisting of /
members of their body as they think fit. Any committee
the exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to ai
may be imposed on them by the Directors.

Chairman is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairman
within ten minutes after the time appointed for holding the same or is
unwilling to act as Chairman, the members present may choose one of
them to be Chairman of the meeting.

A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper. Questions arising at
any meeting shall be determined by a majority of votes of the members
present. In case of an equality of votes, the Chairman shall have and
exercise a second or casting vote.

All acts done by any meeting of the Directors, or committee of Directors,
or by any person acting as a Director, shall, notwithstanding that it be
afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of
such Directors or persons acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them

were disqualified, be as valid as if every such person had been duly ,\.@b

appointed and was qualified to be a Director.

o
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A resolution in writing circulated to all the Directors signed by or affirmed
by the simple majority through telex or telegram shall be as valid and
effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Directors duly
convened and held.

ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

At the First Annual General Meeting of the Company, all the Directors
shal! stand retired from office, and thereafter shall be eligible for re-
election in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 for a term of
three years.

A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

The Directors of the Company, unless the number of persons who offer
themselves to be elected is not more than the number of Directors fixed by
the Board of Directors, shall be elected to office by the members in
General Meeting in the following manner :-

(a) A member shall have such number of votes as is equal to the
product of the number of voting shares or securities held by him
and the number of Directors to be elected;

(b) A member may give all his votes to a single candidate or

he may choose;

(¢c) The candidate who gets the highest number of voi
declared elected as Director and then the candidate
next highest number of votes shall be so declared and @]

e

_ the total number of Directors to be elected has been so eleChg&eengnge Cor

Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, the Company may from time to
time in General Meeting increase or decrease the number of Directors.

Any casual vacancy occurring on the Board of Directors may be filled up
by the Directors, but the person so chosen shall be subject to retirement at
the same time as if he had become a Director on the day on which the
Director in whose place he is chosen was last elected as Director.

The Company may remove a Director but only in accordance wi(h‘@
provisions of the Ordinance. »




75.

76.

717.

78.

79.

80.

81.

18

NOMINEE DIRECTOR

In addition to the elected Directors, the Financial Institutions shall be
entitled, during the currency of their respective loan(s) to the Company, to
appoint one person on the Board of Directors of the Company to be called
Nominee Director and to recall and / or replace such a person from time to
time. Such Nominee Director on the Board of Directors of the Company
may not be holder of Share(s) in the Capital of the Company and the
regulations and or rules pertaining to the election, retirement, qualification
and / or disqualification of the Director shal! not apply to him.

THE SEAL

The Directors shall provide a Common Seal of the Company which shall
not be fixed 1o any instrument except by the authority of a resolution of the
Board or by a commiltee of Directors authorized in that behalf by the
Directors, and a Director or any other person authorized in that behalf shall
sign every instrument to which the Common Seal is affixed.

The Directors may provide for the use in any territory, district or place not
situated in Pakistan, of an Official Seal which shall be a facsimile of the
Common Seal of the Company, with the addition on its face of the name of
every territory, district or place where it is to be used. The provisions of
Section 213 shall apply to the use of the Official Seal.

DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES

The Company in General Meeting may declare dividends ¥
shall exceed the amount recommended by the Directors.

The Directors may from time to time pay to the members sucTFrew
dividends as appear to the Directors to be justified by the profits of the
Company.

No dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of profits of the year or any
other undistributed profits.

Subject to the rights of persons (if any) entitled to shares, all dividends
shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid on the shares, but
if and so long as nothing is paid upon any of the shares in the Company,
dividends may be declared and paid according to the amounts of the shares.

. The Directors may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the

profits of the Company such sums as they think proper as a reserve or

reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Directors, be applicable for .\n&b

.‘)\
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meeting contingencies, or for equalizing dividends, or for any other
purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly applied, and
pending such application may, at the like discretion, either be employed in
the business of the Company or be invested in such investments (other than
shares of the Company) as the Director may, subject to the provisions of
the Ordinance, from time to time think fit.

The Directors may carry forward any profits which they may think prudent
not to distribute, without setting them aside as a reserve.

Any General Meeting may resolve that any moneys, investments, or other
assets forming part of the undivided profits of the Company standing to the
credit of any reserve or other fund or in the hands of the Company and
available for dividend (or representing premiums received on the issue of
shares and standing to the credit of the share premium account) be
capitalized and distributed amongst such of the shareholders as would be
entitled to receive the same if distributed by way of dividend (subject to
Articie 3b(vi)) and in the same proportions on the footing that they become
entitled thereto as capital and that all or any part of such capitalized fund
be applied an behalf of such shareholders in paying up in full, any un-
issued shares, debentures or debenture-stock of the Company which shall
be distributed accordingly and that such distribution or payment shall be

thereon before the reglstratlon of the transfer,

If several persons are registered as joint-holders any one o
effectual receipt for any dividend payable on the shares,

Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall be given in the
manner hereinafter mentioned to the persons entitled to share therein.

The dividend shall be paid within the period laid down in Section 251.

All dividends unclaimed for six years after having been declared shall be
kept in trust by the Company but may be invested or otherwise made use of
by the Directors for the benefit of the Company until claimed.

ACCOUNTS

The Directors shall cause to be kept proper Books of Account as requn'%(\'@
by Section 230.



91.

92,

93,

94.

Yys.

96.

97.

98.

20

The Books of Accounts shall be kept at the Registered Office of the
Company or at such other place as the Directors shall think fit and shali be
open to inspection by the Directors during business hours.

The Directors shall from time to time determine whether and to what extent
and ai what time and places and under what conditions or regulations the
accounts and books or papers of the Company or any of them shall be open
to the inspection of members not being Directors, and no member (not
being a Director) shall have any right of inspecting any account and book
or papers of the Company except as conferred by law or authorised by the
Directors or by the Company in General Meeting.

The Directors shall as required by Section 233 and 236 cause to be
prepared and to be laid before the Company in General Meeting such Profit
and Loss Accounts and Balance Sheets and reports as are referred to in
those Sections.

A Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account, and other Reports referred to in
the preceding Article shall be made out in every year and laid before the
Company in the Annual General Meeting made up to date not more than 4
months before such meeting. The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss
Account shall be accompanied by a Report of the Auditor of the
and Report of Directors. 2

A copy of the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Acy
Dlrec\ols and auditors shall, at iedsl twenty one

prowded.

Every account of the Directors when audited and approved by a
Meeting shall be conclusive except as regards any errors discovered therein
within three months next after the approval thereof. Whenever any such
error is discovered within that period the account shall forthwith be
corrected and thenceforth shall be conclusive.

The Directors shall in all respect comply with the provisions of Sections
230 to 236.

AUDIT

Once at least every year the accounts of the Company shall be audited and
the correctness of Profit and Loss Account and Balance Sheet ascertained
by one or more Auditors. The Auditors shall be appointed and their ({ es
regulated in accordance with Sections 252 to 255 of the (,m;fbames
Ordinance, 1984.

0’&
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SECRETARY

99. The Board may appoint a Secretary of the Company who shall perform

such functions and dulies as are required in these Articles, or as may be
directed by the Board.

NOTICES

100. Notices shall be given by the Company 1o Members and Auditors of the

Company and other persons entitled 1o receive notices in accordance with
Section 50 of the Qrdinance.

SECRECY

101.Every Director, Manager, Advisers Auditor, Trustee, Member of a

102. No member or other person (not being a Director) shall be ¥

Committee, Officer, Servant, Agent, Accountant or other person employed
in the business of the Company shall, if so, required by the Directors,
before entering upon his duties, sign & declaration pledging himself to
observe a strict secrecy respecting all transactions of the Company with its
customers and the state of accounts with individuals and in matters relating
thereto, and shall by such declaration pledge himself not to reveal any of
the matters which may come to his knowledge in the discharge of his duties
except when required to do SO by the Directors of by any (Gencia=Ag ToaDE
or by any Court of Law and except sO far as may be necessyg Ve &
comply with any of the provisions in these presents. A

upon the property of the Company Of examine the Companyy
properties without the permission of the Chief Executive, and et
discovery of or any information respecting any detail of the Company's
{rading or any matier which is or may be in the nature of a trade secret,
mystery of trade, or secret process of of any matter whatsoever which may
relate 1o the conduct of the business of the Company and which in the
opinion of the Chief Executive will be in-expedient in the interest of the
members of the Company to communicate.

RECONSTRU CTION

103.0n any sale of the undertakings of the Company the Directors or the

liquidators in winding up proceedings may, if authorized by a Special
Resolution, accept fully paid shares, debentures Of securities of any other
company, cither then existing or to be formed for the purchase in whole or
in part of the property of the Company, and the Directors (if the profits of

the Company permit), of the liquidators (in a winding up), may, &hﬁtribute

&
D)
&

A
"
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such shares or securities, or any other properties of the Company amongst
the members without realization, or vest the same in trustees of them and
any Special Resotution may provide for the distribution or appropriation of
the cash, shares or other securities, benefits or property, otherwise than in
accordance with the strict legal rights of the members or contributories of
the Company for the valuation of any such securities or property at such
price and in such manner as the meeting may approve and all holders of
shares shall be bound to accept and shall be bound by any valuation or
distribution so authorized and waive all rights in relation thereto save only
such statutory rights (if any) as are, in case the Company is proposed to be
or in the course of being wound up, incapable of being varied or excluded
by these presents.

WINDING UP

104.1f the Company is wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a
Special Resolution of the Company and any other sanction as required by
the Ordinance, divide amongst the members in specie or kind the whole or
any part of the assets of the Company (whether they consist of property of
same kind or not) and may, for such purpose, set such value as he deems
fair upon any property 0 be divided as aforesaid and may determine how
such division shall be carried out as between the members or different
classes of members. The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the
whole or any part of such assets in trustees upon such trust for the benefit
of the contributories, as the liquidator with the like sanction, shall think fit,
but so that no member shall be compelled to accept any shares or othg
securities whereon there is any liability.

a Py
Lahore "°o

INDEMNITY.

105. Every officer or agent for the time being of the Company
indemnificd out of the assets of the Company against any liability i
by him indefending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, arisi’g
of his dealings in relation to the affairs of the Company, except th
brought by the Company against him, in which judgment is given in his
favour or in which he is acquitted, or in connection with any application
under Section 488 in which relief is granted to him by the Court.

ARBITRATION

106. Whenever any difference arises between the Company on the one hand
and any of the members, their executors, administrators or assignees on
the other hand, touching the true intent or construction, or the incident or
consequences of these Articles or of the statutes or touching anything there
or thereafler done, executed, omitted or suffered in pursuance of these

Articles or of the statutes or touching any breach or alleged bre&c% of these
.{\'\
»
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Articles, or any claim on account of any such breach or alleged breach, or
otherwise refating to the presents, or to these Articles or to any statute
affecting the Company or to any of the affairs of the Company, every such
difference shall, as a condition precedent to any other action at law be
referred in conformity with the Arbitration Act, 1940, or any statutory
modification thereof and any rules made there-under, to the decision of an
Arbitration to be appointed by the parties in difference or if they cannot
agree upon a single Arbitrator to the decision of two Arbitrators of whom
one shall be appointed by each of the parties in difference, or in the event
of the two Arbitrators not agreeing, then of an umpire to be appointed by
the two Arbitrators, in writing, before proceeding on the reference, and
such decision shall be final and binding on the parties. The proceedings
shall be conducted in English language and at Lahore.




We, the several persons whose names and addresses are subscribed below, are (1
desirous of being formed into a Company, in pursuance of these Articles of Association, and
we respectively agree to take the number of shares in Capitl of the Company as set

opposite to our respective names.

Namg srd Surname [ Nationality
tMasont & Fonmer) Father 8/ with any Resrdentiul Addeess
wn Full Name { in Full farmer Occupntian (i Full )
(1 Bluek Letters ) Nutionality lI
awd CNIC 7 _
PonRIQBAL 2. Zafar-ud-Din | Pakistani Business 2613, 3,000
ALINMED Ahmed Sarwar Road, Three
CN.IC. # Lahore - Cantt. Thousand
335201-1455016-1 B 3s
Ordina
Shares
2.0 MRCFASIHLUD- {qbal Z. Pakistani Business 26173, 1,000
DIN AHMED Ahmed Sarwar Roud, QOne
C.NILC 8 Lahoere - Cantt. Thousand
35201-0454474-7 B Class
Ordinary
Shares
1 MR ORAZI-UD- [qbal Z. Pakistani Dusiness 26/3, 1,000
N ALED Aluned Sarwar Roed, Qne
SNiC Lahorg - Cantt. Thousand
35204-1435016-9 B Class
Ordinary
Shares
_ |
5,000 il
Total Number of Five h
Shares Taken Thous:mJ ;l
T - !
COMPANY REGISTRATION lg
LAHGRE, H
Dated this .. vvveendayof “ O RS— |
Witess to the above signatures SERNALULC (oo eeeinaaeereeee e
Nationality © ......... ... .o
Full Nme & oieieeviiiiiaiene e v e B EE s OCCUPALION ¢ et evirree et ireram e B A
ONL G s Full Address : ..ooviieiiaeiiinns

Fathier's 7 Husband's
Full Name

pany Secretary
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CERTIFICATE FOR COMMENCEMENT OF BUSINESS

I hereby certify that the “PAKISTAN GASPORT LIMITED".
XX XX XX XX XX XX

which was incorporated under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of
1984), on the 2n _ day of April, 2007 and which has filed a duly verified
declaration in the prescribed form that the conditions of clauses (a) to (e) of
sub-section (1) of section 146 of the said Ordinance have been complied with,

is entitled to commence business.

Given under my hand at Lahore this 14t day of May, 2007 two .

thousand and Seven.

VR ' .
gAey T e 5 N
‘0)', o '5 ‘ ..»:.. . p",‘ P =

35
\

( SHAHBAZ SARWAR)
Joint Registrar of Companies,

Fee Rs. 200/- \ i,

No. ARL/__1 3 69§ CERTIFIED TO BE TRUE COPY

Dated: /%X /y)» 2
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THE GOMPANIES ACT, 2017 T
THE COMPANIES {SENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018
[Section 197 and Reg 4 and 20]
PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS, INCLUDING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
SEGRETARY, CHIEF FINANGIAL OFFICER, AUDITORS AND LEGAL ADVISER OR OF
ANY CHANGE THEREIN
PART-}
1.1 CUIN (Incarporation Number) i0050194
42 Name o Company IPAKISTAN GAS PORT LIMITED i |
—— — - -~
1 3 Fee Payment Details -
131 Cinatlan Numbes E-202019218 13.2 Amount [eoo b
/ S8
2. Particulars®: PARTI f i /j:”,‘
2 1. New Appointment/Election 2 Sk
= Y R R o
e Top
| HIC No. or R el RO Bushiess Date of Made of
Passport No. in ather Jsual Residential i ) > .| Present | Appoifitsment/
al ] o . L ment/
Present e ™ P loase of Foreign | Husband Name Arkirues Designation | e O rany | Appointment |.ahange? aay
National © (d) or Change | other remarks™
o )} 7 AP
(TR N
= [ e il L850 W L9005
GBALZ ARMED  [as201- 127 ARMED 126/, SARWAR Chief Pakistan 13/102020 R&'Aﬁlﬂ{i’& =
14550461 {{ROAD, LAHORE Executive
CANTT
ArASEGT 35201 ASHRAF BEG |15 D6 ASAD JAN |[Director Pakistan ~ [soner0zs TRe-Elected
74222126 :ROAD, LAHORE
. |
! i
I il LS T
rasnti AME R 157202- {MIAN ZAHOOR | 64-6.1, GUIBERG- |Oirector | Pakistan 300972020 | Re-Elected
TMAFOOL 19677063 [Ue HAQ ‘i, LAHORE
| |
il i i
AT 8 EMED 77 AMMED 2613 SARWAR  liDrector  |Pakistan 30/09/2026  ||Re-Elected
. 'ROAD, LAHORE
{CANTT, |
S ETIAR 35202- | IFTIKHAR [ROUSE NG 160, ||Director | Pakistan 3000612020 {Re-Elected :
2864337.9  |AHMED KHAN ['STREET NO.04,
(CAVALRY
{GROUND, LAHORE
| QAZ) HUMAYUN 35201- QAZI M iTIIH, SARFRAZ  |Director  |Pakistan 30/06/2620 | Re-Elected i
) 1534539-1 FAREED {RAFIQUI ROAD,
l|LAHORE GANTT
i
il
J dee :
= -3 R = = — ==
lorooonamen Taor 1 763, SARWAR  IlDirector |Pakistan 30/08/2020 || Re-Elected
i 14550168 |AHMED ngOAD, LAHORE
1 : fcanTT.
i i i
’ i i |
; i = =) e ;
[ {FASIH UDDIN AHMED [35201- YAz, {2615, sARWAR Drrector Pakstan BUBs/2020 i REE lected l
| 0a54474-7  |AHMED #ROAD, LAHORE ) i !
l! i jlcanTT. ! i
T ! ! |
i " 1
[L_ o ST TR = I P -!
T3 Ceasing of Officer/RelirementUResignation e e i
L o e . = e
!l ! NIC: N e I ﬂ [ I-; [ Nature of i
PANIES t ted
TRAR OF COM of
ADDITIONALREGISTRAAL P
COMPANY REGISTRATION Of "?.Eg @as®
LAHOR o »,
s eeget‘&w

(,{ )




Present Mame in Full §
(a)

i
h
i

NiLNO. of
Present Name in Full hesspotiNodin
2) case of Foreign
¢ National
[CH

2.3 Any other change in pailiculars relating

NIC No. or
Passport No. in
case of Fureign

National
(b)

Father /

]

Father
Hushand Name
{c}

**in case the

y 1§ not the
% of other di

=+ Also provide p

Husbai Mame |

Usual Residential
Address
(o)

to solumns {a) to (g) above

Usual Residential
Address
(d)

Designation

(e)

Designation
(e}

Nationalily*®

0

(U]

Business
Occupation**
* (if any)
)]

(it any)
()]

Business
Nalignalily** | Occupation®

** In case of resignation of a director, lhe resignation letter and in case of removal of a director. member's resolutian be atlached

3.1 Declaratlon:

PARTHl

| do hereby solemnly, and sincerely declare thal the information provided in the form is
(i} true and correct to the best of my knowledge, in consonance with the record as maintained by the Company and nothing has bieen concealed and
(i} hareby reported after complying wilh and fullitling all requirements under the relevant provisions of law, rules, reguialions, direclives, circulais and nolificaions whichever is

applicable.

3 2 Mame of Aulhorized Officer with designalion/ Authorized Intetmediary {F'A_sf»-} UDDII AHMED

33 Snaluse

horized ( A

3 4 Registration No of A
3 5 Date (DNIMMIYYYY)

Dale of
Present
Appointment
or Change
)

Date of
Present

Appointment

of Change
(]

*n the case of 8 ﬁ'n;{, the full h;me,”aa}ir;s: and abeve mentioned hzu_rfiealar} of each pantner and the date on which each became a | ;a;lr;é;— "
lity of ongm, provide the nalionality of angm as well.
of offices heid, if any.

Mode of
Appuintement /
change / any
other remarks
U}

Mode of
Appontement /
¢hange / any
othier remarks

o

) TR

[Etectronicaly signed by FASIH UDDIN AHM |

11411072020

Pakistan GasPo:_u, Ji/

.

Ieute O
directorship
(nomineefindepe
ndent/addilional/
other}

1]

Nature of
directorship
‘{nomuneedindepen
denl/additonal/oth
“.‘.3‘\.

:“'“..“‘4"»:;;;.",;:1\*

yited

Compfny Secretary




INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILLING FORM-A

The Form shall be made upto the date of last AGM of the Company or the last date of the
calendar year where no AGM is held during the year.

Under S. No.2.17 above, the aggregate number of shares held by each member should be stated,

When the shares are of different classes the columns should be subdivided so that the number
of each class held, is shown separately against S. Nos, 2.7, 2.8 and 2,17

If the space provided in the Form is insufficient, the required information should be listed in 13
separate statement aftached to this return which should be similarly signed. P~

In case a body corporate is a member, registration number may be meutioued mstead of NIC
number.

In case of foreign nationals, indicate “passport number” in the space provided fbr #NIC No.”

Pakistani nationals will only indicate “NIC No.”
This form is to be filed within 30 days of the date indicated in S.No.1.4.

Pakistan GasPert le)‘%v

Compa ecreta/y
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Form A

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
THE COMPANIES (GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS,
2018[Section 130(1) and Regulation 4]

ANNUAL RETURN OF COMPANY HAVING SHARE CAPITAL

PART-I 13 @
(Please complete in typescript or In bold block capitals,)
P p p | ,_)}[/ | )/ '?ﬂ%
i

1.1  CUIN (Registration Number) v Je o [T %4
12 Name ofthe Company |PAKISTAN GASPORT LIMITED

13 FeePaymentDetails 13.1 ChallanNo :’ 132 Amount |- S
: G - 2\
[5a x08%0 o\
DD MM | XYYY ; \
1.4 Form A made up to (iJo] [1J2] [2]0e]2 [ ol) 2y
1.5 Date of AGM T [T12] [Blo]z2le] /
PART-II "
Section-A
2.1 Registered office address | Associated House, 7-Egerton Road, Lahore. |
2.2  Email Address: lhr@ag.com.pk |
2.3 Office Tel. No.: [ 042-36306106, 36306108 ]
2.4 Office Fax No.: [ 042-36368742 ]
2.5 Principal line of business [ LNG TERMINAL |
2.6 Mobile No. of Authorized officer +92-332-8773321
(Chief Executive/ Director/ Company
Secretary/Chief Financial Officer)
2.7 | Authorized Share Capital
Classes and kinds of Shares No. of Shares Amount Face Value
Ordinary Shares B Class 450,000,000 4,500,000,000 | Rs. 10 each
Ordinary Shares A Class (Non-Voting) 86,400,000 864,000,000 | Rs. 10 each
Preference Shares 200,000 2,000,000 | Rs. 10 cach
TOTAL 536,600,000 £,366,000,000 | Rs, 10 each
2.8 | Paid up Share Capital
Classes and kinds of Shares No. of Shares Ampunt Face Value
Ordinary Shares B Class 408,358,969 4,083,589,690 | Rs, 10 each
TOTAL 408,358,969 4,083,589,690 | Rs. 10 each

Pakistan Gas}’o; Lhhited

ool
’ Co ny Secretary

1Y
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2.9 [ Particulars of the holding /subsidiary company, if any
Name of company Holding/Subsidiary | % of shares held
PGPC Consortium Limited Subsidiary 100%
2,10 Chief Executive Officer
Name Mr. Igbal Z. Ahmed
Address . 26/3 Sarwar Road, Lahore Cantt.
NIC No 3[5|2[0|1]1|4|S|S|0|1|6J1
2.11 Chief Financial Officer
Name
Address
L NIC No N I A A N N I
2.12  Secretary
Name Mr. Nadeem Qader e
Address Zainab Square, B Block, Arichitect Housing Scheme, Lahore B
NIC No 3|4]6|0'2|Ol7|5|0’[4.[1]919
fl. iS4 L 2 17 |
2.13 Legal Advisor 5 % “,5;*}1' il
Name Mustafa Raza Ansari W\ & /A
Address 569-V, Lane No. 5, Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi. N, O,
NIC No II]JIIIII!JI
2.14 Particulars of Auditor(s)
Name Address
RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman| Avais Chambers 1/C-5, Sikandar Malhi Road, Canal Park,
Chartered Accountants Guiburg II, Lahore
2.15  Particulars of Share Registrar (if applicable)
Name
Address
e-mail
o=

2.16 List of Directors as on the date annual return is made

| Residential Date of
s# Name Nationality NIC No. (Passport No. if foreigner) | appointment
Address electio
or n
26/3 Sarwar
1. M’,l‘lgdb”z' Road, Lahore Pakistani 3| s| 2| o] 1| 1| 4| 5| s| o 1| 6] 1| 30-09-2020
Cantt,

Pakistan GasPort__Li:ig:\{

!

___ Company Sgcretary
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Qaz 77/8 Sarfarz
2. | Humayun Rafiqui Road, Pakistani 3| 5[ 2[ 01 513/ 4] 5|39 1] 30092020
Fareed Lahore Cantt.
M. Fash | 26/3 Sarwar
3. | Uddin Road, Lahore Pakistani 3 5| 2( 0] 1| 0| 45| 4|4 7(4 7| 30-09-2020
Ahmed Cantt.
Mian Amer | 64-E-1, Gulberg- :
4 | Mehmood | I, Lahore Pakistani 3[ 5 2| of 2| 1] 9| 6| 7 7 o| 6{ 3| 30-09-2020
Mr. Razi 26/3 Sarwar
5. | Uddin Road, Lahors Pakistani 3| 520 1] 1] 4] 5[5 ofl1]6] 9 30092020
Ahmed Cantt.
. 169 Street #
6. | YA | 4 Cavalry pakistani | 3| 5 2| of 2| 2| 8| 6| 4|-8}37}-9] 30-09-2020
Ground, Lahore AP AN
Mr.MN. | 15 D-6, Asad Jan e
7 | Beg Road, Lahore Pakistani 3) 5] 2|01 7] 42|22 1 _._2[5 ..30-3159-2020
1 I t

\ T

\ e
2.17 List of members & debenture holders on the date upto which this Form is'made

No. of shares
S# | Folio Name Address Nationality held/ Debenture NIC No. (Passport No. if foreigner)
Members
Mr, Iqbal Z, | 26/3 Sarwar
1 1 | Ahmed Road, Lahore Pakistani 29,500 S| 2(0f 1145 5|0 1]6f1
Canit.
Mr. Fasih 26/3 Sarwar
2 2 Uddin Road, Lahore Pakistani 21,501,316 5| 2| 0| 1/ 0| 4| 514 4| 7| 47
Ahmed Cantt,
Mr. Razi 26/3 Sarwar
3 3 Uddin Road, Lahore Pakistani 21,901,316 5120 11| 4| 5 5/0]| 1|69
Ahmed Cantt,
Joint House, 7-
4. 4 ek Egerton Road, Pakistani 107,329,044 01414|7)4|8
Limited Lahore
Mr. Tarig House No. 57,
5 5 | Hameed Sarwar Road, Pakistani 2,000,000 7| 4/ 0| 51 0| 2| 6] O| 7| 3| 6] 7
Lahore Cantt.
Mr. Belal House No.
6. | ¢ |Jabbar 163-GGDHA | pakistant 2,000,000 | 3| 5| 2| o] 1| 2| 8| 4| o] 8| o] 2| 1
Lahore Cantt,
House No. 9 St
No. 4, Fazaia
Mr, Rehmnat '
2009 ke | rstamabad Pakistani 6,500.000 | o 1| 1| of 1| 1| 8| 9| 9| 2| 6| 0| 7
Highway
Rawalpindi
Qazi 77/H Sarfarz
|3 ., 10. | Humayun Rafiqui Road, Pakistani 1,060,500 5120 1| 1] 5(3(4]5|3]91
Fareed Lahore Cantt,

Pakistan GasPort tﬁh&l
. f\ J /
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15 D-6, Asad
o, | 1 |[MEMN | yan Road, Pakistani s00[3|s|2[of1]7]4]2
8 Lahore
Mr. Attig 26/3 Sarwar
10, | 13 |Uddin Road, Lakiore | Pakistani 21,901,316 | 3| 5| 2[o| 1| 1]|4]5
Ahmed Cantt,
169 Street #
Mr.Asim | 4,Cavalry .
| 4 | kb owy Pakistani 530,500 | 3[ 5[ 2|of2]2|8]6
Lahore
Leicester
Court Suite 2
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Disclaimer

Pakistan Gasport Limited's (“PGPL” or the “Company”) Annual
Report for the Financial Year ending June 30, 2019, (the “Report™) is
not intended for general distribution and has been produced only for
the review and information of shareholders, financial institutions and
other relevant authorities or persons who have been or who shall be
provided with the Report at the sole discretion of the Company.
Intended recipients may not make the Report publicly available or
disseminate the whole or any portions of this Report through any
form whether written or electronic to any parties or persons not
intended by PGPL to be in possession of the information contained
herein. Unintended recipients may kindly return this Report to the
registered office of PGPL in person or through courier. PGPL is an
unlisted public limited Company incorporated and existing under the
(repealed) Companies Ordinance, 1984.
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About AG

Pakistan Gasport Limited is part of Associated Group ("AG"), which was founded in 1965 by
Mr. Z.Z. Ahmed (1910-1989), a former Deputy Inspector General of Pakistan Police. AG is
one of Pakistan's premier business houses specializing in the energy sector.

Pakistan Gasport Limited ("PGPL") has established the country's second LNG import
tolling terminal through its wholly owned subsidiary PGP Consortium Limited (“PGPCL”)
at Mazhar Point, Port Qasim, Karachi, with a regasification capacity of upto 750mmcfd (the
"Project"). The Project is being implemented pursuant to PGPCL's 15-year LNG Operations
& Services Agreement ("OSA") dated July 1, 2016, with Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited
("PLTL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Government Holdings (Private) Limited, as the
guaranteed capacity purchaser for 600mmscfd.

AG is one of Pakistan's largest private sector LPG producer, transporter and marketer
through its Companies Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited ("JJVL"), Lub Gas (Private) Limited
and Mehran LPG (Private) Limited. From production and processing services to
transportation to marketing and retail, AG has extensive supply-chain expertise in liquefied
petroleum gas, an environment-friendly multipurpose fuel. AG has been in the LPG sector
since 1989 and is an industry pioneer and leader. Its LPG companies include JIVL, Lub Gas
(Private) Limited and Mehran LPG (Private) Limited.

AG entered the media sector in 2010 when it launched Newsweek Pakistan. AG
Architectural Engineering and Design (Private) Limited is a construction Company
specializing in high-quality design and construction innovations.

To streamline its philanthropic efforts, AG founded the Zohra and Z. Z. Ahmed Foundation
in 2008. The Foundation supports education, health, and community development projects
and the arts, focusing especially on communities neighboring AG facilities and areas where
constructive reinforcement can make all the difference between aspired objectives and
material change for the collective good

AGisheadquartered at Lahore with offices in Islamabad and Karachi.
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Vision

PGPL is an Associated Group (“AG”) Company, and its practices are consistent with the
vision of AG founder Mr. Z.Z. Ahmed (1910-1989) to avail challenging opportunities, chart
new entrepreneurial territory, excel in technological standards and advancement, be an equal
opportunity employer, non-discriminatory in policies and to meet environmental standards
as being a socially responsible entity to maintain high standards of ethics and integrity in the
conduct of our business practices.

Mission

PGPL aims to establish a prominent position as a LNG terminal operator in Pakistan by
further augmenting its role in the development of Pakistan's energy sector. In keeping with
the Company Credo, Energy for the people, and capitalization on its successes, PGPL
aggressively pursues opportunities to ensure availability of RLNG throughout the country
and to explore energy sector for participating in nationally important projects.
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Chairman's Review

I am pleased to present the performance of Pakistan Gasport Limited (PGPL), the holding company
of PGP Consortium Limited (PGPC) which owns and operate the country's second LNG import
terminal having a regasification capacity of 750 mmscfd situated at Mazhar Point, Port Qasim,
Karachi.

The LNG Import Terminal Project was implemented as a result of award from Pakistan LNG
Terminals Limited (“PLTL”) to PGPL. PGPL designated this project to its wholly owned subsidiary,
PGPC, as per requirements of Request for Proposal. PGPC successfully commissioned the Terminal
which started commercial operations on January 4, 2018. Till then the terminal is working to meet
the energy shortfall in Pakistan.

Project Investment

The terminal represents partnership among and investment from, among others, Jamshoro Joint
Venture Limited (“JJVL”), which is the country's largest private sector gas processing concern; BW
Group, which has provided the BW Integrity FSRU (Floating Storage and Regasification Unit) to
PGPC on a 15-year lease; Fawji Oil Terminal & Distribution Company Limited (“FOTCO”), which
is part of Fauji Foundation; and Trafigura Pte. Ltd., which is one of the world's largest energy trading
companies.

The engineering and construction of the terminal was undertaken by a consortinm led by Xinjiang
Petroleum Engineering Construction Company Limited (“XPE”).

Collectively, the Project represents an investment of over half a billion dollars in the jetty, pipeline
system, and FSRU, as follows:

Jetty and marine works (including securities and SBL.C) $203.68

BW Integrity FSRU $270

RLNG pipeline and metering system $50.27
$523.95
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During FY2018-19, the terminal completed 43 ship-to-ship transfers with 6,032,313m3 of cargo
being loaded. The regasification capacity availability was 100 percent with 13,104 LTI (Lost Time
Injuries)-free hours.

Project Value

The sponsors' equity as at June 30, 2019, stood at Rs. 9.78 billion as opposed to Rs. 4.69 billion
during the previous financial year. In addition, the Company was able to attain long-term debt of Rs.
4,63 billion. The value of property, plant and equipment rose to Rs. 18.02 billion as against Rs. 12.03
billion in the preceding financial year.

OutlookThe Terminal has provided services to state-owned Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited
(“PLTL”) without interruption and exceeding the performance thresholds agreed between the two
companies in terms of the 15-year Operation and Services Agreement of July 1,2016 (“OSA”). Such
services are continuing pursuant to Clause 37.9 of the OSA following PLTL's issuance, on Oct. 14,
2019, of a purported termination letter. PGPC has been granted injunctive relief by the Islamabad
High Court and the impugned termination, among other matters, is pending resolution at the London
Court of International Arbitration (“LCIA™).

Regulatory approvals for utilization of PGPC's excess regasification capacity of 150mmscfd are
progressing and the institution of Third Party Access rules by the Government of Pakistan will
enable the Company to add a revenue stream other than PLTL through the import and sale of LNG
entirely in the private sector.

Heads of Agreement to this end have been executed among PGPC, Trafigura Pte. Ltd., and Universal
Gas Distribution Company (Private) Limited (“UGDC”). The PGPC-PLTL contract is for 15 years,
whereas the Implementation Agreement with Port Qasim Authority (“PQA”) is for 30 years, with the
option of extending it further by another 30 years.

PGPL sponsors are also progressing the development of the country's third LNG terminal, also at
PQA, that operates on a purely private sector model.

[ am grateful to the PGPL Board of Directors, staff, shareholders, foreign and local associates and
partners for their support and efforts in ensuring the continued success of this landmark and
nationally important Project.

Py -

Igbal Z.Ahmed
Chairman

L.ahore, November 02, 2020
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Reportofthe Directors
fortheyearendedJune 30,2019

The members of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Pakistan GasPort Limited (the “Group™) are
pleased to present the Directors' Report for the Financial Year ended June 30, 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board consists of seven (7) directors, who were reelected in the Extraordinary General Meeting
of Sep. 30, 2017, for another term of three (3) years. The Board, which has remained unchanged
since then, comprises:

L. Mr. Igbal Z. Ahmed (ChiefExecutive / Director)
2 Qazi Humayun Fareed (Director)

3. Mian Amer Mahmood (Director)

4. Mr. Fasih Uddin Ahmed (Director)

5 Mr. Asim Iftikhar (Director)

6. Mr. Razi Uddin Ahmed (Director)

A Mr.M.N. Beg (Director)

About the Group

The Group consists of two unlisted public Limited Companies, Pakistan GasPort Limited (The
Parent Company and PGP Consortium Limited (The Subsidiary) incorporated in Pakistan on April
02,2007 and September 1, 2015 respectively, under the (Repealed) Companies Ordinance, 1984 and
owns second LNG Terminal of Pakistan. The registered office of the Group is situated at Associated
House, Seven-Egerton Road, Lahore. The LNG terminal of the Group is located at Mazhar point,
Hafeez Island, Port Qasim, Karachi.

The Group is principally engaged in providing LNG receiving, storage and re-gasification services.
Pursuant to a transparent, international competitive bidding process, The Subsidiary entered into the
15-year Operation and Services Agreement (the “OSA”™) with state-owned Pakistan LNG Terminals
Limited (“PLTL”) on July 1, 2016. The Group's landmark terminal achieved Commercial Start Date
(“CSD”) on Jan. 4, 2018, and is providing storage and regasification services to PLTL for
600mmscfd atarecord low tolling tariff of $0.4177/mmbtu.

CAPITAL

The Group has Authorized Share Capital is Rs.7.37 billion comprising 450 million B Class-Voting
Ordinary Shares of Rs.10 each, 86.4 million A Class Non-Voting Ordinary Shares of Rs.10 each and
200.2 million Preference Shares of Rs.10 each. The paid-up share capital is Rs. 5.66 billion
comprising of 566.26 million B Class Voting Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each and 157.9 million
preference shares of Rs.10 each.

OPERATIONS AND FINANCIALRESULTS

During FY2018-2019, BW Group, whose companies have leased to the Group and operate and
maintain the BW Integrity FSRU, reports that the terminal completed 43 ship-to-ship (“STS”)
transfers with 6,032,313m3of cargo being loaded. The regasification capacity availability was 100
percent with 13,104 LTI (Lost Time Injuries)-free hours. On June 6, 2020, The Group completed its
100th STS transfer.
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The Group earned a profit-before-tax of Rs. 338.85 million after recognition of Rs. 1,318.80 million
being discounted value of BW Group pre-CSD charges. Tax, consisting mainly of deferred tax,
amounted to Rs. 255.28 million. Revaluation of fixed assets recognized in the books of the Company
amounted to Rs. 6,138.02 million, and, after setting off related deferred tax of Rs. 1,627.362 million,
resulted in total comprehensive income for the financial year at Rs. 4,594.22 million.

BW Group's pre-CSD invoices have been charged to the P&L account for FY2018-2019 in the
amount of Rs. 1.318.80 million, which is the discounted impact of the invoices in this account based
on installments agreed with the BW Group over a period of three years plus a grace period of 14
months with effect from August 2020. Although the benefit of this span the duration of the 15-year
contracts between thesubsidiary and BW Group, it is being factored in FY2018-2019 in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Further, the Group has raised claims from PLTL of Rs. 1,997.77 million on account of payments
made by the Group to BW Group and Rs. 722.06 million paid by the Group to PQA during FY2018-
2019. These claims, inter alia, are being settled at the London Court of International Arbitration
(“LCIA™).

Auditors and Audit Report

The appended financial statements have been audited by RSM Awais Hayder Nauman, Chartered
Accountants (“RSM™), in accordance with TFRS. Information on and explanation of the contents of
modification in the auditors' report are as follows:

1.  RSM has noted that the Group has factored in the discounted value of BW Group's pre-CSD
invoices and related expenses, i.e. Rs. 1,318.80 million, based on a three-year installment plan
agreed between the Company and BW Group versus the full invoiced amount of Rs. 1,997.77
million. The auditor has disagreed with this treatment and is of the opinion that since this is a
non-adjusting event in accordance with IAS 10, Hence the lease expense and related liability
should be recognized at full amount.

The Group's position is that the original 2016 lease and operations and maintenance
agreements with BW Group are for 15 years which stipulated commencement of contractual
payments from July 16, 2017. However due to delays in commercial start date, the Group
commenced payments to BW Group in November 2017 even though CSD was achieved on
Jan. 4, 2018 on account of delays caused by PLTL. Hence, the Group has raised claims with
PLTL for these pre-CSD figures. An amount of $12.14 million remained outstanding to BW
Group for the period July 16,2017,to Oct. 31,2017.

On June 1,2020, the Subsidiary and BW Group entered into an agreement to make payments in
36 installments commencing from Aug. 31, 2020. The total liability is Rs. 1,997.77 million as
at June 30, 2019. However, the Company has recorded the liability of Rs. 1,318.80 million on
Net Present Value basis using a discount rate of 16.97 percent for a similar instrument as
management is of the view that discussions that culminated in the installment agreement were
in contemplation during FY2018-2019.

2.  The LCIA process underway is the result of PLTL's purported termination letter dated Oct. 14,
2019, and its inability to arrive at a fair and equitable resolution without incurring the costs of
international arbitration on either side. The auditors observed that this indicates a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern.

The Group's position is that, as per PLTL's own express acknowledgement, business is
continuing and both sides are fulfilling their obligations pursuant to Clause 37.9 of the OSA
despite the purported termination of the contract. The basis for the purported termination letter
was alleged
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default under the Adequate Assurance of Performance clause of the OSA, despite the fact that
both sides had agreed through correspondence on remedial measures, which were fulfilled by
the Group. The Company has additionally also created a $15-million pari passu charge on its
fixed assets in favor of PLTL to fully address any alleged concerns regarding Adequate
Assurance of Performance. The first hearing at the LCIA is scheduled to take place in January
2022.

InJanuary 2020, the [slamabad High Court also granted the Subsidiary injunctive relief against
any adverse move by PLTL that could shortchange or compromise the ongoing LCIA process.

Based on the view of its legal counsels, The Group is satisfied with the legality and legitimacy
of its claims at LCIA. The Group's auditors, having reviewed the matter, are also agreed with
the information provided above. Financial statements for FY2018-2019 have, therefore, been
made on a going-concern basis.

Any Material Changes, Commitments affecting the Group's Financial Position

No other material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Group have
occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this report except as disclosed herein.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

No other risks and uncertainties affecting the Group have been identified except the litigation with
PLTL as described above along with mitigating strategies.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Group's management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the Company's
system of internal controls in order to identify and manage risks. This system reasonably assures
that:

Assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition;

Proper and reliable accounting records are available for use within the business;

Adequate control mechanisms have been established within the operational businesses; and
Internal financial controls deployed within the Company have been satisfactory throughout
the year.

Reporting

The Group complies with all statutory reporting requirements. All statements, financial and
otherwise, duly reviewed by the Company's auditors are provided to shareholders, associates,
financial institutions, and relevant authorities on a regular and responsible basis.

Future Outlook

Regulatory approvals for utilization of the Group's excess/surplus regasification capacity of
150mmscfd are progressing and the institution of Third-Party Access rules by the Government of
Pakistan will enable the Company to add a revenue stream other than PLTL through the import and
sale of LNG entirely in the private sector. Heads of Agreement to this end have been executed among
the Group, Trafigura Pte. Ltd., and Universal Gas Distribution Company (Private) Limited
(“UGDC"). The Group-PLTL contract is for 15 years, whereas the Implementation Agreement with
Port Qasim Authority (“PQA™) is for 30 years, with the option of extending it further by another 30
years.
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Earnings per Share
Asat June 30,2019, the earnings per share of the Group is Rs. 0.17.
Dividend Declaration

The Board declared and approved payment of cash dividend of Rs. 377.43 million to Preference
Shareholders during FY2018-2019, as per the terms and conditions of the Preference Shares
Subscription agreements. No dividend has been recommended for Ordinary Shareholders for FY
2018-2019 in view of pre-CSD invoices however, the Management of the Group is confident to
declare dividend to ordinary shareholders in coming financial years keeping in view the financial
projections of the Company.

Monthly Remuneration Package of the Directors and Chief Executive

Monthly Salary

Mr. Igbal Z. Ahmed Chairman Rs. 3,885,555
Mr. Qazi Humayun Fareed Vice Chairman Rs. 818,889
Mr. Attig Ahmed Director

Mr. Fasih Ahmed Chief Executive Officer Rs. 540,000
Mr. Razi Ahmed Director

Ms. Sadia Ahmed Director

Mr. Asim Iftikhar Director Finance Rs. 1,632,222

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group is committed to its Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR™) charter and
contributestoward health and education initiatives, and environmental care. It remains vigilant
about the requirements and needs of host communities. The Group has also planted 27,000
mangroves in the Port Qasim area as part of its CSR charter.

Shareholding Pattern

The pattern of shareholdings is attached with this report.

The Board is grateful to the Company's staff and foreign and local associates and partners for their
endeavors toward the abiding success of this landmark energy infrastructure project.

For and on behalf of the Board:

=
Igbal Z. Ahmed Qazi Humayun Fareed
Chairman / Chief Executive Vice Chairman / Director

Lahore, November 02, 2020
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Pattern of Shareholding Consolidated

PGPL’s pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 20 19, was as follows;

Ordinary Share Holding — B Class

Shareholders (no) Range of shareholding No of shares
02 1 to 50,000 30,000
10 50,001 to 15,000,000 36,543,044
09 15,000,001 to 100,000,000 371,785,925
408,358,969
No of Percentage of
Category shareholders No of chaves helg shareholding
Chief executive, Directors, 7 145,423,632 35.61%
spouses and minor children
Associated Undertakings 1 107,329,044 26.28%
Shareholding 10% - - -
General Public 13 155,606,293 38.11%
Total 21 408,358,969 100.00%
Preference Share Holding
I Shareholders (no) Range of shareholding No of shares
11 1 to 10,000,000 52,900,000
2 10,000,001 to 30,000,000 32,000,000
2 30,000,001 to 143,100,000 73,000,000
15 - 157,900,000
No of Percentage of
Category shareholders LD S shareholding
Chief executive, Directors, 1 3,563,000 2.26%
spouses and minor children
Associated Undertakings - - -
Shareholding 10% 3 93,000,000 58.90%
General Public 11 61,337,000 38.85%
Total 15 157,900,000 100.00%
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Credit Rating Report

Annual Report 2018-19 | 16



—~,

PAKISTAN GAS PORT LIMITED

Annual Report 2018-19] 17



AR

PAKISTAN GAS PORT LIMITED

Consolidated Financial Statements

Annual Report 2018-19 18



C&

RSM

RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman
Chartered Accountants

Avais Chambers, 1-C/5
Sikander Malhi Road, Canal Park
Guiberg Il Lahore Pakistan

T:+92 (42) 3587 2731-3
F:+92 (42) 3587 2734

lahore@rsmpakistan.pk
www.rsm.global/pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of Pakistan Gas Port Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Pakistan Gas Port Limited and its subsidiary (the
Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019 and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at June
30, 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Subsidiary has recorded lease liability and related lease expense of Floating Storage Regasification Unit, for the
period from July 16, 2017 to October 31, 2017 amounting to US dollars 12.144 million, on net present value on the basis
of the deferred payment arrangement as agreed with the vendor vide agreement dated June 01, 2020 (Refer Note 22.4).
In our view, this is not in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard 10 'Events after the
Reporting Period’ as the above referred deferred payment arrangement is a non-adjusting subsequent event. As a
result, lease liability and related lease expense have been decreased by Rs. 678.973 million and consolidated profit for
the year and equity as at the reporting date have been increased by Rs.678.973 million.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Qur
responsibilifies under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
abasis for our qualified opinion.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD Other Offices at:

Karachi:  : 92(21) 3565 5975-6
AUDIT | TAX | CONSULTING Faisalabad : 92 (41) 854 1165/354 1965
Islamabad : 92(51) 2114096-8
Quetta  : 92(81) 2829809
Peshawar : 92 (91) 527 8310/527 7205
Kabul  :93(799) 058155

RSM Avais Hyeder Liaguat Nauman is a member of RSM network and trades as RSM. RSM Is the trading name used by the members of the RSM network. Each rember of the KSM network is an independent
accounting and consuliing firm which practices in its awn right. The RSM network is not is self a separate legal entity in any jurisdiction.
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Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 3.2 to the consolidated financial statements which indicates litigation between the Subsidiary
and Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL) relating to termination of the Operations and Service Agreement and
acquisition of its LNG Terminal by PLTL. This indicates a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
director's report, but does notinclude the consolidated financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report
thatfact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
thatare free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative butto do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override ofinternal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group'sinternal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
lo cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
amanner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Syed Ali Adnan Tirmizey.

RSMRAVAIS HY LIAQUATN

Charlered Accotntants
Placg: Lahore
. November 02, 2020
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RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman
Chartered Accountants

Avais Chambers, 1-C/5
Sikander Mathi Road, Canal Park
Gulberg ll, Lahare Pakistan

T: +92 (42) 3587 2731-3

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT F:+92 (42) 3587 2734

lahore@rsmpakistan.pk
www.rsm.global/pakistan

To the members of Pakistan Gas Port Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Pakistan Gas Port Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position,
the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2019 and of the loss, total comprehensive loss, the
changes in equity andits cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have abtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 7.2 to the financial statements which describes litigation between Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited
(PLTL) and PGP Consortium Limited (the Subsidiary) relating to termination of the Operations and Services Agreement by PLTL
and issuance of Option Exercise Notice which may impact the investment of the Company in future. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the directors'
report, butdoes notinclude the financial statements of the company and our auditors' report thereon.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD et rviantls
AUDIT | TAX | CONSULTING Faisalabad . 92 (41) 854 1165/354 1965

Istemabad : 92 (51) 2114096-8

Quetta : 92 (81} 282 9809
Peshawar : 92 (91) 527 8310/527 7205
Kabul : 93 (799} 058155

RSM Avais Hyeder Liaquat Nauman is a member of RSM network and trades as RSM. RSM is the trading name used by the members of the RSM rietwark. Each member of the RSM network is an independent
accounting and consulting firm which practices in its own right. The RSM network is not is self a separate legal entity in any jurisdiction.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repartin this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 0f 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
managementeitherintends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the ecanomic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As partof an auditin accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orthe override of intemal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's intemnal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)  properbooks of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX0f2017);

b)  the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the

Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns:

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company's
business; and

d) noZakatwas deductible atsource underthe Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the auditresulting in this independent auditors' reportis Syed Ali Adnan Tirmizey.

@ J{{éf /

RSMJAVAIS HY, LIAQUAT NAUMAN
Chajtered Accountants
Plage: Lahore

Datg: November 02, 2020
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PAKISTAN GAS PORT LIMITED

Statement of financial position

as at June 30, 2019

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

investment in subsidiary

CURRENT ASSETS
Loans, advances and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

(Accumulated loss)
Share deposit money

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Short term borrowings

CONTINGENCY

The annexed notes from 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore
Date: November 02, 2020

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Note

10

11

12
13

14

Ry -

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees
2,755 38,065
130,051,373 139,596,317
4,083,589,690 3,214,752,180
4,213,643,818 3,354,386,562
47,161,728 43,165,546
94,187,823 69,767,083
141,349,551 112,932,629
4,354,993,369 3,467,319,191
5,366,000,000 5,366,000,000
4,083,589,690 3,141,461,740
{23,405,768) (11,820,968)
- 73,290,440
4,060,183,922 3,202,931,212
5,747,217 6,125,854
289,062,230 258,262,085
294,809,447 264,387,979
4,354,993,369 3,467,319,191

DIRECTOR
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PAKISTAN GAS PORT LIMITED

>

Statement of profit or loss
for the year ended June 30, 2019

Other income

Administrative expenses
Marketing expenses
Bank charges and commission

Exchange gain / (loss)

Loss for the year before taxation
Provision for taxation

Loss for the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore
Date: November 02, 2020

Note

15

16

2019 2018
Rupees Rupees

- 3,648,983
(11,006,085) {(9,776,406)
- {1,875,000)
{694,577) (977,364)
115,862 (113,518}
(11,584,800) (12,742,288}
(11,584,800} {(9,093,305)
(11,584,800} {9,093,305)

Yoz = @fe/“?

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR
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PAKISTAN GAS PORT LIMITED

Statement of comprehensive income
Jor the year ended June 30, 2019

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Date: November 02, 2020 CHIEF EXECUTIVE

2019 2018
Rupees Rupees
(11,584,800) (9,093,305)
(11,584,800) (9,093,305)

DIRECTOR
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PAKISTAN GAS PORT LIMITED

D

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended June 30, 2019

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss for the year before taxation
Adjustment for:

Depreciation
Amortization
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

Working capital changes:
{increase) in current assets:
Loan and advance
(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities:

Trade and other payables

Net cash (used in) operating activities

B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in capital work in progress
Investments made during the year

Net cash (used in) investing activities

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Issue of shares
Short term borrowing obtained

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year  (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Date: Navember 02, 2020 CHIEF EXECUTIVE

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees
{11,584,800) {9,093,305)
35,310 196,448
9,544,944 3,181,648
(2,004,546) (5,715,209}
{3,996,182})| | (35,446,727)
(378,677) (7,343,640)
{4,374,859) (42,790,367}
(6,379,405)  (48,505,576)
- {43,246,500)

(868,837,510) -
(868,837,510)  (43,246,500)

868,837,510 -
30,800,145 101,012,087
899,637,655 101,012,087
24,420,740 9,260,011
69,767,083 60,507,072
94,187,823 69,767,083

DIRECTOR
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PAKISTAN GAS PORT LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity

Jor the year ended June 30, 2019

Balance as at July 01, 2017
Total comprehensive loss
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Balance as at June 30, 2018

Transactions with owners
Share deposit maney received during the year
Shares issued during the year

Total comprehensive loss
Loss for the year
GOther comprehensive income

Balance as at June 30, 2019

Issued,
subscribed and {Accumulated Share deposit
paid up capital Loss) money Total
Rupees
3,141,461,740 (2,727,663) 73,290,440 3,212,024,517
- {9,093,305) - (9,093,305}
- (9,093,305) - {9,093,305)
3,141,461,740 {11,820,968) 73,290,440 3,202,931,212
- - 868,837,510 868,837,510
942,127,950 - (942,127,950) o
942,127,950 - {73,290,440) 868,837,510
- {11,584,800) ) {11,584,800)
- {11,584,800) - (11,584,800)
4,083,589,690 (23,405,768) - 4,060,183,922

The annexed notes from 1 to 22 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore
Date: November 02, 2020

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Y02 e Wj

DIRECTOR
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PAKISTAN GAS PORT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended June 30, 2019

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Legal status and operations

Pakistan Gas Port Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on April 2, 2007 under the (repealed)
Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company is engaged in the business of importing, exporting, processing and distributing LNG,
RLNG; CNG, LPG, natural gas liquids and other allied products. The registered office of the Company is situated at Associated House,

Seven-Egerton Road, Lahore in the province of Punjab.

The Company is carrying out the project of running a liquified naturai gas terminal facility through a special purpose vehicle, Ms. PGP
Consortium Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary), as per terms of the contract with Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL).

These financial statements pertain to the Company as an individual entity.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:

-International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued underthe Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Thesefinancial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Use of Estimate and Judgment

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to Company’s financial statements or where judgments were
exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

- Provisionfor current and deferred taxation
-Residual values and useful lives of depreciable assets
- Amartization of intangible assets

-Provisions

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND iNTERPRETATIONS
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PAKISTAN GAS PORT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended June 30, 2019

31

Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations becoming effective in current period

The following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have become effective and are mandatory for financial
statements of the Company for the periods beginning on or after July 01, 2018 and therefore, have been applied in preparing these
financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 replaced the provisions of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ that relates to the recognition,
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment of
financial assets and hedge accounting. The adoption of IFRS 9 did not have a significant effect on the Company’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities. The changes in accounting policies have been applied retrospectively. The nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies related to financial assets are set out below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets

IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets of held to maturity, loans and receivables, held for trading and
available for sale. [FRS 9, classifies financial assets in the following three categories:

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

-fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

~amortized cost.

The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at the date ofinitial application:

- The determination of business model within which a financial asset is held; and

- The designation and revocation of previous designation of certain financial assets as measured at 'FVTPL,

Afinancial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL:

- itis held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal
amountoutstanding.

A debtinvestmentis measured at FVOCI if it meets bath of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL:

- Itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 'flows and selling financial assets;
and

- Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

An investment in equity instruments, not held for trading, may be measured at FVOCI if an irrevacable election is made at the time of
initial application of this IFRS or initial recognition of suchinvestment.

All financial assets that are not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI, as described above, are measured at FVTPL. On
initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortized cost or at FVOC! as FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of profit or loss account or other
comprehensiveincome. )

Afinancial asset is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition, except FVTPL
which is measured at fair value.

Afinancial asset is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition, except FVTPL
which is measured at fair value.

The following table explains the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for
each ciass of the Company’s financial assets asat June 30, 2018:

Original New . .
o Carrying New Carrying
classification classification
under ISA 39 under [FRS 9 Amount Amount
Rupees
Loan to subsidiary Loans and advances Amortised cost 26,440,400 26,440,400
Advance against expenses Loans and advances Amortised cost 14,700,728 14,700,728
Cash and bank balances Loans and advances Amortised cost 69,767,083 69,767,083
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PAKISTAN GAS PORT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
Jfor the year ended June 30, 2019

Impairment

IFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. IFRS 9 introduces a forward-looking
expected credit loss model, rather than the currentincurred loss model, when assessing the impairment of financial assetin the scope
of IFRS 9. The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost, contract assets and debt investments at
FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach for measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all loans and advances. Impairment losses related to loans and advances are presented separately in the statement of
profit or loss. Loans and advances are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Management used actual
credit loss experience over past years to base the calculation of ECL on adoption of IFRS 9. Given the Company’s experience of
collection history and historical loss rates / bad debts and normat loans and advances aging, the move from an incurred loss model to
an expected loss model has not had any significant impact on the financial position and / or financial performance of the Company.

Loss allowance on debt securities are measured at 12 months expected credit losses as those are determined to have low creditrisk at
the reporting date. Loss allowance on other securities and bank balances is also measured at 12 months expected credit losses. Since
these assets are short term in nature, therefore no credit loss is expected on these balances.

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

On 28 May 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) issued International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS")
15 “Revenue From Contracts with Customers” which provides a unified five-step model for determining the timing, measurement and
recognition of revenue. The focus of the new standard is to recognize revenue as performance obligations are made rather than based
on the transfer of risk and rewards. IFRS 15 includes a comprehensive set of disclosure requirements including qualitative and
quantitative information about contracts with customers to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue. The
standard supersedes IAS 18 “Revenue”, IAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and a number of revenue related interpretations.

The Company has applied the modified retrospective method upon adoption of IFRS 15 as allowed under the Standard. This method
requires the recognition of the cumulative effect (without practical expedients) of initially applying IFRS 15 to opening retained
earnings. Under this transition method, comparative information for prior periods are not required to be restated and continuesto be
reported in accordance with the previous standards and related interpretations.

The adoption of the standard has ho impact on the Campany’s financial statements.
IFRS 2—Share-based Payment

Amendments to classification and measurement of Share-based Payment transactions, applicable for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2018, contains the following clarifications and amendments:

Accounting for cash-settled share-based payment transactions that include a performance condition

Until now, IFRS 2 contained no guidance on how vesting conditions affect the fair value of liabilities for cash-settled share-based
payments. IASB has now added guidance that introduces accounting requirements for cash-settled share-based payments that
follows the same approach as used for equity-settled share-based payments.

Classification of share-based payment transactions with net settlement features

IASB has introduced an exception into IFRS 2 so that a share-based payment where the entity settles the share-based payment
arrangement net is classified as equity-settled in its entirety provided the share-based payment would have been classified as equity-
settled had it notincluded the net settlement feature.

Accounting for madifications of share-based payment transactions from cash-settled to equity-settled

Until now, IFRS 2 did not specifically address situations where a cash-settled share-based payment changes to an equity-settled share-
based payment because of modifications of the terms and conditions. The IASB has introduced the following clarifications:

- On such modifications, the original liability recognized in respect of the cash-settled share-based payment is derecognized and the
equity-settled share-based payment is recognized at the modification date fair value to the extent services have been rendered up to
the modification date.

- Any difference between the carrying amount of the liability as at the modification date and the amount recognized in equity at the
same date would be recognized in profit and loss immediately.

The application of these amendments has no impact on the Company’s financial statements.
1AS 40 - Investment Property

The amendments in Transfers of Investment Property, applicable for periods heginning on or after lanuary 01, 2018, state that an
entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use. A change
of use oceursif property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property. A change in management’s intentions for the
use of a property by itself does not constitute evidence of a change in use.
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3.2

The application of these amendments has no impact on the Company’s financial statements.
IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
IFRIC 22 clarifies the accounting for transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance considerationina foreign currency.

The Interpretation covers foreign currency transactions when an entity recognizes a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration before the entity recognizes the related asset, expense or income. It
does not apply when an entity measures the related asset, expense or income on initial recognition at fair value or at the fair value of
the consideration received or paid at a date other than the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability. Also, the Interpretation need not be applied to income taxes, insurance contracts or reinsurance contracts.

The application of these amendments has no impact on the Company’s financial statements.
Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations becoming effective in current period but not relevant

There are certain new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that became effective during the year and are
mandatory for accounting periods of the Company beginning on or after July 01, 2018 but are considered not to be relevant to the
Company’s operations and are, therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements.

Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations becoming effective in future periods

The following standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the Company’s
accounting periods beginning on or after their respective effective dates.

IFRS 3 - Business Combinations

The 1ASB has issued ‘Definitian of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)’ aimed at resolving the difficulties that arise when an entity
determines whether it has acquired a business or a graup of assets. The amendments are effective for business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2020.

The application of these amendments has no impact on the Company’s financial statements.
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards:

The IASB issued Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards. The document contains amendments to
IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, 1AS 1, |AS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32. Not all amendments,
however update those pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the framework so that they refer to the revised
Conceptual Framework. Some pronauncements are only updated to indicate which version of the framework they are referencing ta
{the IASC framework adopted by the IAS8 in 2001, the I1ASB framework of 2010, or the new revised framework of 2018) or to indicate
that definitions in the standard have not been updated with the new definitions developed in the revised Conceptual Framewark.

The amendments, where they actually are updates, are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The
application of these amendments has noimpact on the Company’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle, applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January
01, 2019.

In December 2017, the IASB published Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle, containing the following
amendmentsto IFRSs:

IFRS 3 — Business Combinations and IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements— The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains
centrol of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in that business. The amendments to IFRS 11
clarify that when an entity abtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure previously held
interests in that business.

1AS 12 - Income Taxes ~ The amendments clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends {i.e. distribution of profits) should be
recognized in profit or loss, regardless of how the tax arises.

IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs — The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready
for its intended use or sale, that horrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the
capitalization rate on general borrowings.

The application of these amendments has no impact on the Company’s financial statements.
IAS 1and IAS 8 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The International Accounting Standards Board (JASB) has issued ‘Definition of Material (Amendrnents talAS 1and1AS 8) to clarify the
definition of and to align the definition used in the Conceptual Framework and the Standards themselves.
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vi.

vii.

viii.

3.3

‘Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity.

The amendments, where they actually are updates, are effective for annual periods beginning on or after lanuary 1, 2020. The
application of these amendments has no impact on the Company’s financial statements.
IFRS 16— Leases

IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognize, measure, present and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee
accounting model, requiring lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the
underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16’s approach to lessor
accounting substantially unchanged fromits predecessor, I1AS 17,

IFRS 16 replaces the following standards and interpretations:

-1AS17 Leases

-IFRIC4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease

-SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives

- $IC-27 Bvaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Farm of a Lease

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1lanuary 2019, as notified by S.R.Q.

434(1)/2018 dated April 9, 2018. The management of the Company is reviewing the changes to evaluate the impact of application of
standard onthefinancial statements.

|AS 19-Employee Benefits

Amendments, applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019, relate to plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement detailed as below:

- Ifaplan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is now mandatory that the current service cost and the net interest for the
period after the remeasurement are determined usingthe assumptions used for the remeasurement.

- In addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement on the
requirements regarding the asset ceiling.

The application of these amendments has na impact on the Company's financial statements.
IAS 28 ~ Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle {clarifying certain fair value measurements), applicable for
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2018, clarified that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an investment
in anassociate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital organization, or other qualifying entity, is available for
each investmentin an associate or joint venture onan investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.

Further, amendments applicable for periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019 have been added to clarify that an entity applies
IFRS 9 including its impairment requirements, to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity methad is not applied.

The application of these amendments has ho impact on the Company’s financial statements.
IFRIC 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes.

The interpretation is to be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
taxrates, when there is uncertainty overincome tax treatments under 1AS 12.

IFRIC 23 s effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019. Earlierapplication is permitted.
The application of these amendments has noimpact on the Company’s financial statements.

Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations becoming effective in future period but notrelevant

There are certain new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations that are effective from different future periods but
are considered not to be relevant to the Company’s operations, therefore, not disclosed in these financial statements.

Standards issued by IASB but not applicable in Pakistan

Following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for purpose of applicability in Pakistan:
IFRS 1 -First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4.1 Property and Equipment
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairmentloss, if any.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account using straight line method. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in
which the asset is available for use while no depreciation is charged for the month in which an asset is disposed off. Assets residual
values, useful lives and depreciation rates are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting date.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred, while major renewals and
improvements are capitalized. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale
praceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income orexpense,

All costs / expenditures connected with specific assets collected under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific
assetsasand when assets are available for intended use.

4,2 intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognized if it is probable that future econamic benefits will flow to the Companyand the cost of such assets can
be measured reliably. These are stated at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The intangible assets of the Company comprise of computer software {which is in the process of being implemented) and the cost of
settlement resulting in award of contract to the group for a term of 15 years, starting from January 04, 2018 for setting up of LNG
storage and regasification services at Port Qasim, Karachi for Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL).

Computer software are subject to amortization based on reducing balance method whereas the cost of settlement resultingin award
of contract to the group for setting up of LNG storage and regasification services at Port Qasim, Karachi for Pakistan LNG Terminals
Limited (PLTL} are subject to amortization over the life of contract over straight line basis. Amortization on additions during the yearis
charged from the month in which an asset is acquired or capitalized, while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset
is disposed off.

4.3 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of
impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if
any. Animpairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less cost to disposal and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows
using a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets for
which the estimate of future cash flows have not been adjusted. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units),

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss s
reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment ioss had been recognised previcusly. Reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the profit and foss account.

4.4 Financial Instruments

4.4.1 Measurementof financial asset
Initial Measurement
The Company dlassifies its financial assets into following three categaries:
-fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

-fairvalue through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
-measured at amortized cost.

Afinancial asset is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition, except FVTPL
which is measured at fair value.
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4.4.2

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification, as follows:

Debt Investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. interest /
markup income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in
the statement of profit or loss. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss. ;

Equity Investments at FVOC!

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income and are
never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as income in the statement of profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest markup or dividend income, are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of
profit orloss.

Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the
respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes trade debts, advances, other receivables and cash and
cash equivalents.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of awnership of the
financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control over thetransferred assets.

Measurement of Financial liabilities

Initial Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:
-fairvalue through profitorloss; and

- other financial liabilities.

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognized initially
atfair value and, in case of other financial liabilities also inciude directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:
Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability upon
recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Gain and losses are recognized in statement of profit or less, when the liabilities are derecognized as
wellas through effective interest rate amortization process.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when and only when the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
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4.4.3  Offsetting of Financial Asset and Financial Liability

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount s reported in the financial statements only when the Cecmpany
has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the Company or the counter
parties.

4.4.4 Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs} in respect of financial assets measured at amortized cost.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-
month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- ather debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has notincreased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss alfowances for receivables are always measured at an amount equa! to lifetime ECLs. When determining whether the credit risk
of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including
faorward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a reasonable
period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date
(or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 manths). The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk. Loss allowances for financial assets
measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a
reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects na significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for
recovery of amounts due.

4.5 Related Party Transactions

Transactions with related parties are carried out on arm’s length basis. Prices for these transactions are determined on the basis of
comparable uncontrolled price methods which sets the price by reference to comparable goods and services sold in an economically
comparable marketto a buyer un-related to the seller.

4.6 Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiary is initially recognized at cost. At subsequent reporting date, recoverable amounts are estimated to
determine the extent of impairment loss, if any, and carrying amount of investment is adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are
recognized as expense in statement of profit or loss. Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amounts of
investment are increased to its revised recoverable amount but limited to the extent of initial cost of investment. Reversal of
impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

The profits and losses of subsidiaries are carried forward in their financial statements and not dealt within these financial statements
except to the extent of dividend declared by the subsidiaries. Gains and losses on disposal of investment are included in statement of
profit orloss.

4.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash with banks on current, saving and depaosit accounts.
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4.8 Loans and Advances

These are classified at amortized cost and are initiaily recognized when they are originated and measured at fair value of
consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss
experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

4.9 Trade and Other Payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future
for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

4.10  Taxation
4.10.1 CurrentTax

Provision of current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking into account applicable tax credits
and taxrebates available under the law.

4.10.2 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method for all temparary differences at the reporting date between tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses, if any, to the extent
thatitis probable that taxable profit will be available against which such temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred taxis charged or credited in the statement of statement of profit or loss, except in case of items credited or charged to equity
in which caseitisincludedin equity.

4.11  Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All
other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

4.12 Fareign Currency Transactions

Transactions in currencies other than Pakistani Rupee are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the reporting date except where forward exchange contracts have been entered into for repayment of liabilities, in
that case, the rates contracted for are used. Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in statement of profit or loss for the
year.

4,13 Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made to the extent of obligation. However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.
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5

6.1

6.2

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

At July 01, 2017
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended June 30, 2018
Opening net book value
Depreciation charged
Closing net book value

As at June 30, 2018
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended June 30, 2019
Opening net book vaiue
Depreciation charged
Closing net book value

As at June 30, 2019
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book vaiue

Annual rate of depreciation (%)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software development cost

Legal and settlement cost

Furniture

C Total
and fixtures omputers ota
Rupees
8,300 631,651 639,951
(3,883) (407,676) (411,561)
4,415 223,975 228,390
4,415 223,975 228,390
(830) (189,495) (190,325)
3,585 34,480 38,065
8,300 631,651 639,951
(4,715) (597,171) (601,886)
3,585 34,480 38,065
3,585 34,480 38,065
(830) (34,480) (35,310)
2,755 - 2,755
8,300 631,651 639,951
(5,545) (631,651) {637,196)
2,755 - 2,755
10% 30%
2019 2018
Note
Rupees Rupees

6.1 1,194,630 1,194,630
6.2 128,856,743 138,401,687
130,051,373 139,596,317

The Company has entered into an agreement with Intertec Business Systems (Pvt) Limited for the purchase of Application software

(Syros) whichis under development.

Legal and settlement cost

Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book value

2019 2018
Note
Rupees Rupees
141,583,335 141,583,335
(12,726,592) (3,181,648)
6.21&6.2.2 128,856,743 138,401,687
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6.2.1

6.2.2

7.1

2.2

8.1

8.2

2019 2018
Rupees Rupees
Reconciliation of net book value
Balance at the beginning of the year 138,401,687 -
Transfer from capital work in progress - 141,583,335
Amortization charge for the year (9,544,944) (3,181,648)
Balance at the end of the year 128,856,743 138,401,687

ltrepresents cost of settlement resulting in award of contract to the Company for a term of 15 years, starting from January 04, 2018 for
setting up of LNG storage and regasification services at Port Qasim, Karachi for Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited {PLTL). This cost is
being amortized over the contractual life of the project.

2019 2018
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY Howe Rupees Rupees

Unquoted - at cost
PGP Consortium Limited
408,358,969 (2018: 314,146,174) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 4,083,589,690 3,141,461,740
Ownership interest 100% (2018: 100%)

Share deposit money - 73,290,440

7.1&72 4,083,589,690 3,214,752,180

PGP Consortium Limited (the subsidiary) is a public limited company, incorporated in Pakistan under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984. The registered office of the subsidiary is situated at Associated House, 7-Egerton Road, Lahore, in the province of
Punjab. The investment had been made in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017.

The Subsidiary is operating an LNG Terminal under Operation and Services Agreement (OSA) signed between Pakistan LNG Terminals
Limited (PLTL} and the subsidiary on July 01, 2016 for a term of 15 years. Subsequenttoyearend, PLTLissued Notice of Termination of
QSA and Option Exercise Notice against which both parties went into litigation under clause 37 of the OSA and matter has been
referred to London Court of International Arbitration (LCIA). LCIA has fixed the matter for hearing in January 2022. As per the clause
37.9 of OSA, both the parties are obligated to perform their respective obligation under OSA till the finalization of litigation by LCIA.
The litigation is resulting in material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on subsidiary’s ability to continue as a going cancern.
Accordingly, it may impact the value of investment in future, however, there is no impact on the value at this stage.

2019 2018
Note
Rupees Rupees
LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered geod
Advance income tax 2,024,418 2,024,418
Loan to subsidiary 8.1 30,000,000 26,440,400
Other receivable 8.2 15,137,310 14,700,728
47,161,728 43,165,546

This is due from PGP Consortium Limited (the subsidiary company) arid the maximum aggregate amount outstanding during the year
was Rs. 30 million (2018: Rs. 80 million). This is unsecured, interest free and repayable ondemand.

This represents expenses incurred an behalf of Pakistan Gas Solutions Limited {a related party) and the maximum aggregate amount
outstanding during the year was Rs. 15.14 million {2018: Rs. 14.70 million}. The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable cn
demand.
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9 CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note itz 2018
Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand 55,668 18,999
Cash at bank - in current accounts
Local currency 133,604 165,857
Foreign currency 9.1 93,998,551 69,582,227
94,132,155 69,748,084
94,187,823 69,767,083

9.1 This amount includes USD 573,113/- equivalent to Rs. 93,991,991/- (2018: Rs. 69,432,640/-) on which lien is marked by Habib
Metropalitan Bank Limited against Bank Guarantee issued in favor of Port Qasim Authority.

10 AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

2019 2018 2019 2018
Number of shares Rupees Rupees
"A" class ordinary shares (Non Voting)
86,400,000 86,400,000 of Rs. 10 each. 864,000,000 864,000,000
"B" class ordinary shares (Voting)
450,000,000 450,000,000  of Rs. 10 each. 4,500,000,000  4,500,000,000
536,400,000 536,40G,000 5,364,000,000 5,364,000,000
200,000 200,000  preference shares of Rs. 10 each. 2,000,000 2,000,000
536,600,000 536,600,000 5,366,000,000 5,366,000,000
11 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL
2019 2018 2019 2018
Number of shares Rupees Rupees
"B" class ordinary shares (Voting) of Rs.
408,358,969 314,146,174 10 each fully paid in cash 4,083,589,690  3,141,461,740

11.1  Reconciliation of issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital at beginning and at end of the year is as under:

314,146,174 314,146,174 At the beginning of the year 3,141,461,740 3,141,461,740
94,212,795 - Shares issued during the year 942,127,950 -
408,358,969 314,146,174 At the end of the year 4,083,589,690 3,141,461,740

112 Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited held 26.28% (2018:34,17%) "B" class ordinary shares of the Company as at reporting date,
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12

121

13

131

14

15

15.1

Note
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Auditors' remuneration payable
Payable on account of consultancy services 121

‘With-holding tax payable

Itinclude Rs. 4,775,815/- (2018: Rs. 4,775,815/-) due to an associated company.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS Note

Related parties
Jamsharo joint Venture Limited - associated company
PGP Consortium Limited - subsidiary company
Chief Executive Officer

Others
13.1

2019 2018
Rupees Rupees
873,100 790,150
4,816,643 5,261,644
57,474 74,100
5,747,217 6,125,854
2019 2018
Rupees Rupees
22,392,548 21,708,548
235,209,682 205,093,537
1,460,000 1,460,000
259,062,230 228,262,085
30,000,000 30,000,000
289,062,230 258,262,085

These are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. These represent payments made on behalf of the Company and funds

received for investment/expenses of LNG Project which have been utilized accordingly.
These are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

CONTINGENCY

On behalf of the Company, Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited hasissued a letter of guarantee for USD 1 million (2018: USD 1 million) in

favour of Port Qasim Authority.

Note
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Fee and subscription
Professional charges
Depreciation 51
Amortization 6.2.1
Auditors' remuneration 15.1

Rates and taxes
Miscellaneous

Auditors' remuneration

Audit Fee

Half year review

Out of pocket expenses
Sales tax

2019 2018

Rupees Rupees
32,401 5,086,495
55,000 75,000
35,310 196,448
9,544,944 3,181,648
1,207,500 971,750
100,800 201,000
30,930 64,065
11,006,085 9,776,406
795,000 680,000
200,000 165,000
99,500 84,500
113,000 42,250
1,207,500 971,750

Annual Report 2018-19 | 88



PAKISTAN GAS PORT LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended June 30, 2019

2019 2018
Note
Rupees Rupees
16 PROVISION FOR TAXATION
Current tax
For the year 16.1 - -
Deferred tax 16.2 - -

16.1  Noprovision for taxation has been madein these financial statements asthe Company has no taxable income and turnover.,
16.2  Deferred taxation

Deferred tax asset of Rs. 228.84 million {2018: Rs. 260.11 million) on account of carry forward tax losses has not been recognised in
these financial statements due to less probability of availability of taxable income in future.

17 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
No employee was employed by the company inthe current and prior year.
18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company in the normal course of business carries outtransactions with various related parties which comprise of Directors, Chief

Executive Officer, Subsidiary Company and Associated Companies. Transactions with related parties which have not been disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements are as under:

Name of related i . . Percentage of  Nature of transaction 2019 2018
Basis of relationship . i
party Shareholding during the year
Rupees Rupees
Payments made on 436,582 39,788,376
behalf of the Company
Loan o{:)temed from 5,379,100 )
Pakistan Gas Port Subsidiary the SUbS'd'de —
Consortium Company 100% eat iproviced: to the 6,608,700 80,000,000
Limited subsidiary
loan repaid by the 3,049,100 53,559,600
subsidiary
| t, during th
nvestment during the 868,837,510 i
year
Associated
i Lo eived duri
Jamshora Joint Company 26.28% e "8 684,000 21,708,548
Venture Limited due to shareholding the year
in the Company
. Related Party due to
Pak . .
° 'S.tan G?s ) common Paid during the year 436,582 14,700,728
Solutions Limited i X
Directorship
Fasih ud din ] Share issued during 217,161,880 -
Ahmed Directors
- = the year
Razi ud din Ahmed 217,161,880 -
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19

19.1

19.2

19.2.1

19.2.2

15.2.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company finances its operations through the mix of equity, debt and working capital management with a view to maintain an
appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The overall risk management is carried out by the finance
departmentunder aversight of the Board of Directors in line with the policies approved by the Board.

2019 2018
Rupees Rupees
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial assets at amortised cost :
Loan to subsidiary 30,000,000 26,440,400
Other receivable 15,137,310 14,700,728
Cash and bank balances 94,187,823 69,767,083
139,325,133 110,908,211

Financial liabilities at amortised cost :
Trade and other payables 5,689,743 6,051,794
Short term borrowing 289,062,230 258,262,085

294,751,973 264,313,879

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks {credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk). Risks measured and
managed by the Company are explained below :

Creditrisk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter parties failed completely to
perform as contracted. The maximum exposuretocreditrisk at the reporting date is as follows:

2019 2018
Rupees Rupees
Loan to subsidiary 30,000,000 26,440,400
Other receivable 15,137,310 14,700,728
Bank balances 94,132,155 69,748,084
139,269,465 110,889,212

The creditrisk exposure is limited in respect of bank balances as hank balances are placed withlocal banks having good credit rating.
Ligguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The
Company’s approachto manage liquidity is to maintain sufficient level ofliquidity of the Company on the basis of expected future cash

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices will atfect the
Company'’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters whiie aoptimizing returns.
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Interestrate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. However, the Companyis not exposed to anysignificant interest rate risk.

Currencyrisk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument, will fluctuate because of changes in fareign
exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to foreign currency transactions. The
Companyis not significantly exposed to currency risk.

18.2.4 Fairvalues offinancial instruments
The carrying values of all the financial assets and financial liabilities reportedin the financial statements approxirnate their fair values.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

20 CAPITALRISK MANAGEMENT
The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company's ahility to continue as a going concern and to maintain
@ strong capital base to support the sustai ned develapment of the businesses,
The Company manages its capital by maonitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount by issue of new shares The
Company also monitars capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt, trade and other payables, less cash and bank balances. Capital
signifies equityas shownin the statement of financial position plus net debt. The Companyis not significantly exposed to capitalrisk.

21 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FORISSUE
The Financial Statements have been authorized for issue bythe board of directors of the Company an November 02,2020.

22 GENERAL

22.1  Prior year figures have been reclassified/ rearranged wherever considered necessary for the purpose of better presentation. Major
reclassification / rearrangement made to these financial statements is as follows:
‘Advance from PGP Consartium Limited' of Rs. 205,093,537/- which was previously shown on face of the statement of financial
position which has now been clubbed inthe head 'Short term borrowings'.

22.2  Figureshave been rounded off tothe nearest Rupee, unless otherwise stated.

. % b W/

Date: November 02, 2020 CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Pakistan Gas Port Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Pakistan Gas Port Limited and its
subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2020
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at June 30, 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we have
fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 3.2 to the consolidated financial statements which indicates litigation between the
Subsidiary and Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL) relating to issuance of notice of termination of the
Operations and Service Agreement and Option Exercise Intention notice to acquire the LNG Terminal of the
subsidiary. This indicates a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is ot madified in respect of this matter. %

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT {TAX | CONSULTING
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the director's report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary fo enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or eror and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concem. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial stalements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal confrol that we
identify during our audit.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Syed Ali Adnan Tirmizey.

\

RSM AVAIS HYDER LIAQUAT NAUMAN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Place: Lahore

Date:
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ASSETS

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Net investment in lease

Direct cost on Floating Storage and Re-gasification Unit
Long term oan to associated company

Current assets

Current portion of non-current assets

Stores and spares

Trade debts - unsecured

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

iOth

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Autharized capital

issued, subscribed and paid up capital
408,358,969 (2019: 408,358,969) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
157,900,000 {2019: 157,900,000} Preference shares of Rs. 10 each
Revenue resereve: Un-appropriated profit / (loss)
Capital Reserve: Revaluation surplus
on property, plant and equipment - Net of tax

Non current liabilities
Long term finances
Lease liabilities

Long term payable
Deferred income
“eferred liabilities
Deferred taxation

Current liabilities

Current portion of non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Short term borrowing

Provision for taxation

Accrued finance costs

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

V=N

Ao -

i | o _-_2019 .?;i_._._"ﬂ-il_.’-;

a ) FOEI0 T

NOte™ © e e : g
. Rupees inthousand
6 18,645,504 18,015,354
7 120,108 130,051

g 40,104,827 .
9 1,533,040 1,657,340
10 g 961,254
60,403,479 20,763,999

11 2,732,605 -
12 49,116 60,396
13 1,411,338 1,391,620
14 - 853,999 601,719
15 1,430,142 1,691,649
6,477,200 3,745,384
£6,880,679 24,509,383
16 7,366,000 7,366,000
17 4,083,590 4,083,590
18 1,579,000 1,579,000
968,825 (1,340,537)
19 4,989,278 4,779,288
11,620,693 9,101,341
20 2,092,634 3,389,043

21 39,568,225 -
22 1,361,525 58,467

232,910 .
23 27,641 19,171
24 2,455,432 2,139,066
45,738,367 5,605,747
25 3,222,550 1,657,960
26 6,052,210 7,806,583
27 53,853 53,853

30,509 e
28 162,497 283,899
9,521,619 9,802,295

29 - =
66,880,679 24,509,383

DIRECTOR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 o Ot s gy

PRI S 20200 0 209
. '_N-.Ot..e,._ i e g e whcTHE ]
Db . Rupeesinthousand
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 40 3,488,684 3,226,704
E£ffect on cash flows due to working capital changes:
Increase in advances, deposits and other receivables (282,502) {230,101)
Decrease / (increase) in trade debts 612,821 (371,293)
Decrease in stores 11,280 7,471
{Decrease) / increase in trade and other payables (1,298,793) 1,196,427
(957,194) 602,504
Net cash flow after working capital changes 2,531,490 3,829,208
Proceeds from net investment in lease 1,087,543
Finance income received on net investment in lease 4,670,562 -
Finance cost paid on lease lisbilities (3,377,303) -
Repayment of lease liabilities {1,212,361) -
Finance costs paid {1,011,125) (778,204
Taxes paid (25,413) (2,455)
Gratuity paid {2,543) g
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 2,660,850 3,048,549
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure (46,671} (92,692)
Direct cost on FSRU paid {708,909) {654,455)
Loan repaid to associated company - net (1,495,048) {961,256)
Net decrease in long term payables 1,082,841 {5,745)
Net cash {used in) investing activities (B) (1,167,787) {1,714,148)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term finances - secured 73,000 4,625,000
Repayment of long term finances (1,572,500) {710,741)
Share deposit money received - 868,838
Dividend paid (272,889) (377,434)
Transaction cost paid - (73,102)
Proceeds from short term borrowings - unsecured 11,125,482 10,689,288
Repayment of short term borrowings - unsecured (11,107,663) (14,841,083)
Net cash {used in) / generated from financing activities {Q) {1,754,570) 180,766
Net {decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (261,507} 1,515,167
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,691,649 176,482
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,430,142 1,691,649
The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial stutements.
DIRECTOR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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1 CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 iegal status and operations of Group

The Group consists of Pakistan Gas Port Limited (the Parent) and PGP Consortium Limited (the Subsidiary).

Pakistan Gas Port Limited is an unlisted public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on April 2, 2007 under
the (repealed) Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The Company was incorporated to
engage in the business of importing, exporting, processing and distributing LNG, RLNG, CNG, LPG, natural gas
liquids and other allied products. The registered office of the Parent is situated at Associated House, Seven -
Egerton Road, Lahore in the province of Punjab.

PGP Consortium Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on September 1, 2015 as an unlisted public limited
company under the (repealed) Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The subsidiary is
principally involved in the business to set up, build, design, construct, engineer, maintain, own and operate the
Liguefied Natural Gas (LNG) Terminal Facility. The registered office of the subsidiary is situated at Associated
House, Seven - Egerton Road, Lahore. The LNG terminal of the Subsidiary is located at Mazhar Point, Hafeez
Island, Port Qasim, Karachi.

Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL) awarded second LNG terminal project (the Project) through a competitive
bidding process in which the Parent was the successful bidder and it was awarded the Project. As per the
requirements of Request For Proposal (RFP), project was to be carried through a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
by the successful bidder. In pursuance of this requirement, the Subsidiary was designated as Special Purpose
Vehicle (SPV) to carry out the project under the requirements of RFP.

An Operations and Services Agreement [OSA) was signed between PLTL and the Subsidiary for a 15 years term on
July 01, 2016 under which PLTL provided off-take guarantee to the Subsidiary. PLTL is paying a capacity fee for
600 MMSCFD committed capacity calculated on a daily basis to the Subsidiary irrespective of the quantity of LNG
re-gasified. Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2020, PLTL has been merged with another state owned
entity, Pakistan LNG Limited (PLL).

2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION . R e S

The financial statements of the Parent and Subsidiary are combined on a line by line basis. The financial statements of
the subsidiary are consolidated from the date on which more than 50% voting rights are transferred to or power to
control the subsidiary is established and are excluded from consolidation from the date of disposal or reduction of
control.

All intra-group balances, transactions and resulting unrealized profits, if any, are eliminated.

Non-controlling interest is that part of the net results of the cperations and net assets of the subsidiary attributable to
interests which are not owned by the Parent.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION : ey T
3.1 Statement of Compliance M e e s

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise;

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
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A
-

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Golng concern assumption A L G e |
PLTL, on October 14, 2019 issued termination notice to the Subsidiary under clause 35.3.1 of 0SA alleging
Operators default under clause 29.4 (Adequate Assurance of Performance) of OSA since Operator Guarantor
(Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited) failed to maintain the specified credit rating as per the requirement of the
clause 29.2 of OSA. The Subsidiary rejected the contentions of PLTL, as PLTL unconditionally agreed on the
subsidiary’s offer for provision of charge on fixed assets amounting to USD 15 million as adequate assurance of
performance under Clause 29.4. The subsidiary invoked Clause 37 of OSA for amicable resolution of the matter
and both parties appointed their authorized representatives. Subsequent to issuance of termination notice the
Subsidiary successfully completed the process of registration of Pari Passu charge with Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, on its fixed assets in favor of PLTL, as per the requirement of Clause 29.4 of OSA.
However, the authorized representatives failed in amicable resolution of the matter and PLTL has also issued the
optien exercise intention notice dated October 14, 2019 to acquire LNG terminal under terms and conditions of
the fixed assets option agreement dated April 25, 2017 between both parties. This indicates the existence of a
material uncertainty, which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and,
therefore, the Group may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the rormal course of
business. To address the issue, following steps have been taken:

The subsidiary has referred the matter to London Court of International Arbitration {LCIA) on January 29, 2020.
Moreover, on March 04, 2020, the Subsidiary has also filed in LCIA for settlement of its financial claim of
recovery of losses of USD 58.129 million and Rs 790.361 million related to delay in commissioning caused by
PLTL due to its failure in meeting its contractual obligations, recovery of revenue of USD 2.225 million for
rendering LNG Services prior to commercial start date, reimbursement of payments made to Port Qasim
Authority ("PQA') of Rs. 1,880.312 million on account of royalities paid to PQA for the import of LNG by PLTL and
also for reimbursement by PLTL of royalty to be paid on import of LNG in future. The Subsidiary reserves its right
to amend royalty claim and increase this amount as and when further royalty is paid to POA. PLTL has in turn
submitted to LCIA a claim for liquidated damages of USD 42 million against the Subsidiary on account of delay in
commercial start date ('CSD'). The Subsidiary has already recognized one million dollar in respect of liquidated
damages payable to PLTL as per arbitrator's recommendations as disclosed in note 22. The LCIA has consolidated
the two arbitrations, on the Subsidiary's request, and has fixed the matter for hearing in January 2022; and

On January 22, 2020, the company filed an arbitration petition in Islamabad High Court {"IHC') which has granted
status quo, being extended in every hearing. The case was last fixed for hearing on April 1, 2021 but was
adjourned. The case will be fixed for hearing by the relevant branch of the Islamabad High Court in due course.

As a result of the status quo as per OSA being maintained by both parties under the Court's order, the Subsidiary
is stili providing toll manufacturing services to PLTL under OSA and is claiming its capacity and ultilization charges
through raising monthly invoices which are duly settled by PLTL. Based on the view of its legal counsel, the
management of the subsidiary is confident for a favorable outcome. Accordingly, these financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Basis of Measurement g AR A 4}

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise mentioned
in accoutning policies stated herein.

Functional and Presentation Currency : P AR g
Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the Group operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are
presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(S/
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3.5 Use of Estimate and Judgement

i)

i)

(a}

{b)

{¢)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards require
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods. Judgments made by management in application of the approved
accounting standards that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk
of material adjustments in the next year are discussed in respective policy notes. The areas where various
assumptions and estimates are significant to the group’s financial statements or where judgment was exercised
in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis.
Any change in estimate in future years might effect the carrying amounts of respective items of property, plant
and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge.

Leases

The adoption and application of IFRS 16 as detailed in note 2.3.1 {a} required significant management
judgements and use of estimates. These include the following:

Evaluation and separation of lease and non-lease components

The OSA has been determined to have an operating lease component with respect to terminal and connecting
pipeline, a sublease of right-of-use asset (FSRU) and certain non-lease components including utilisation / re-
gasification and operations and maintenance services. The assessment required significant judgements and
interpretation of the requirements of IFRS 16 with respect to separation of lease components of terminal and
right-of-use assets. Accordingly, the right-of-use assets and terminal were determined not to be highly
dependent or interrelated to each other and the lessee having the ability to use the underlying asset on its own
or together with other resources readily available to it. The arrangement of connecting pipeline does not contain
a lease as the portion of the pipeline capacity allocated to the Company is not physically distinct and the
Company is not entitled to use substantially all of the benefits of the connecting pipeline,

Classification of lease

The classification of lease of terminal required the use of estimates of cashflows during the contract period,
margins, residual values and allocation of amounts under daily capacity charges to lease and non-lease
components, determination of minimum lease payments at the inception of lease from terminal and sublease of
right-of-use assets. As a result, the lease terminal has been determined as an operating lease as significant risk
and rewards relating to the same remain with the Company at the end of the lease term, taking into account the
useful life and fair value of terminal assets, minimurn lease payments, residual value and the assessment that the
customner is not likely to exercise the purchase option.

Non-lease components

The non-lease components include utilisation / regasification, pipeline hospitality charges, operations and
maintenance services relating to the terminal, connecting pipeline and right of use assets and other recurring
costs which have been determined and excluded from daily capacity charges based on the actual cost incurred
and estimates of future costs. The recovery was estimated with reference to cost plus estimated margin, where
applicable, as standalone prices were not observable,
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4.1

4.1.1

(a)

{d) Discount rate

The rate used on transition to discount future lease payments under FSRU Lease Agreement represents the
Company's incremental borrowing rate. The rate has been estimated using the LIBOR rates available in the lease
currency and adjusted to reflect the underlying lease term based on observable inputs.

iii} Impairment of financial assets

The Company uses default rate based on the credit rating of the party from which the balance is due, probability
weighted cashflow projections for the party for which credit rating is not available and provision matrix for the
party which has similar characteristics to calculate expected credit losses (ECL) for trade debts and other

The default rate is benchmarked and adjusted for forward looking information, cash flow projections are
discounted using original effective interest rate, and the rate in provision matrix is based on days past due for
the party that has similar loss pattern.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rate which is then adjusted
for forward looking information. The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rate and
the projection of cashflows from the party, for forecast economic conditions and ECL is a significant estimate.

The amount of ECL is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of the
party's actual default in the future.

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
Initial application of standards, amendments or an interpretation to existing standards

The fellowing amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Company's financial
statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the foliowing dates:

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective in the current year

Certain standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS are effective for accounting periods beginning on July 1,
2019 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company’s operations (although they
may affect the accounting far future transactions and events) and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial
statements, except for the following:

IERS 18, 'Leases’

The Company has applied IFRS 16 retrospectively from the date of initial application of july 1, 2019, but has not restated
tomparatives, as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the standards. The application has had a
significant impact on the accounting for Company's arrangements under Floating Storage and Regasification Unit
{'FSRU’} Lease Agreement and Operation and Service Agreement {'OSA'). The application has also required management
to reassess its arrangements under OSA which was previously accounted For as a contract for services due to exemption
from application of IFRIC 4. The impact of adoption of this standard is, therefore, recognised in the opening statement of
financial position as at July 1, 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in note 5.13.

The application of IFRS 16 and conclusions reached required management to apply significant judgements and make
estimates particularly for the purpose of identification, evaluation and separation of multiple lease and non-lease
components and classification of leases as disclosed in note 3.5 {ii). The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on July 1, 2019 was 10.75% per annum.
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The following summary reconciles the Subsidiary's operating lease commitments at June 30, 2019 as previously disclosed
in note 29.2, to the lease liabilities recognised on initial application of IFRS 16 at July 1, 2019:

Rupees in thousand

Operating lease commitments as at June 30, 2019 90,672,191
Short term feases not recognised as a liability (24,890)
90,647,301
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial appfication.
Lease liabilities recognised as at July 1, 2019 40,345,311

The right-of-use asset was measured at the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019,

Arrangement previously classified as operating lease - as a lessor

IFRS 16 does not change substantially how a lessor accounts for leases. Under IERS 16, a fessor continues to classify the
lease as either finance leases or operating leases and account for those two types of leases accordingly.

However, under IFRS 16, an intermediate lessor accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The intermediate lessor is required to classify the sublease as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-
use asset arising from the head lease (and not by reference to the underlying asset which was the case under IAS 17).

At the date of initial application, the Company has reassessed its operating subleases on the basis of remaining
contractual terms and conditions of the head lease and the sublease. Based on the assessment, the Company has
reclassified its operating sublease arrangement relating to the right-of-use assets (FSRU) as a finance lease and has
accounted for the sublease as a new finance lease entered into at the dzte of initial application as per requirements of

IFRS 16,
The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the statement of financial position as at July 1, 2019:

Rupees in thousand

Recognition of right of use asset 40,345,311
Recognition of lease liability 40,345,311
Derecognition of right-of-use assets on account of sublease 40,320,831
Recognition of net investment in lease 40,320,831
Recognition of deferred tax asset on lease liability 11,700,140
Recognition of deferred tax liability on right of use asset 7,099
Recognition of deferred tax liability on net investment in lease 11,693,041

Practical expedients applied

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the company has used the following practical expedients permitted by the

standard:
- the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at July 1, 2019 as short-term
- excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application,

4.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Company

There are certain standards, amendments to the IERS and interpretations that are mandatory for companies having
accounting periods heginning on or after July 1, 2020 but are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant
effect on the Company’s operations and are, therefore, not detailed in these financial Statements, except for the
following:
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(a)

{b)

Definition of Material -~ Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements' and IAS 8, 'Accounting policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’

The IASB has made amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8, which include the use of a consistent definition of materiality
throughout IFRS and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, clarify when information is material and
incorporate some of the guidance in 1AS 1 about immaterial information.

In particular, the amendments clarify:

- that the reference to obscuring information addresses situations in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating
that information, and that an entity assesses materiality in the context of the financial statements as a whole, and

- the meaning of ‘primary users of general purpose financial statements’ to whom those financial statements are
directed, by defining them as ‘existing and potential investors, lenders and other creditors’ that must rely on general
purpose financial statements far much of the financial information they need.

The Company is yet to assess the impact of these amendments.
Revised Conceptual Framewaork for Financial Reporting

The 1ASB has issued a revised Conceptual Framework which will be used in standard-setting decisions with immediate

effect.
Key changes include:

increasing the prominence of stewardship in the objective of financial reporting;

reinstating prudence as a component of neutrality;

defining a reporting entity, which may be a legal entity, or a portion of an entity;

revising the dafinitions of an asset and a liability;

remaving the probability threshold for recognition and adding guidance on derecognition;

adding guidance on different measurement basis; and

stating that profit or loss is the primary performance indicator and that, in principle, income and expenses in other
comprehensive income should be recycled where this enhances the relevance or faithful representation of the financial
statéements.

No changes will be made to any of the current accounting standards. However, entities that rely on the Framework in
determining their accounting policies for transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the
accounting standards will need to apply the revised Framework from effective date. These entities will need to consider
whether their accounting policies are still appropriate under the revised Framework.

The Company is yet {0 assess the impact of this amendment.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES N e _ Y A oY
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

S— G T - : =

5.1 Property, Plant and Equipment — 2 D
Jetty and dredging and Plant and machinery are stated at revalued amounts less accumuiated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any). All other assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses {if any).

Depreciation is charged to income, applying the straight line method. The rates of depreciation are set out in
note 6.1 to the financial statements.

The assets' residual values, the method of depreciation and useful lives are reviewed, at each financial year end,
and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant. The Company's estimate of the residual value of its
operating fixed assets as at reporting date has not required any adjustent.
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Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the date at which asset is acquired
or capitalised tili the date on which the asset is disposed off.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the period in which they are incurred.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as “Revaluation surplus”, except
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any
decrease in carrying amount arising on revaluation of an item of Property, plant and equipment is charged to
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus on property, plant
and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment to the extent of incremental depreciation charged (net of deferred tax) is transferred to
unappropriated profit. In case of the sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus
remaining in the surplus on revaluation is transferred directly to the unappropriated profit. All transfers to /
from surplus on revaluation of fixed assets account are net of applicable deferred income tax. The revaluation
reserve is not available for distribution to the Group’s shareholders.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the
difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income or
expense.

5.2 Capital work-in-progress

All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried
under capital work in progress and are stated at revalued amount. These are transferred to specific assets as and
when these assets are available for use.

5.3 Intangible assets e ; ' e R

intangible assets are recognized as assets if it is probable that future econemic benefits will flow to the Group
and the cost of such assets can be measured reliably. These are stated at cost less any accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The intangible assets of the Group comprise of computer software and the cost of settlement resulting in award
of contract to the group for a term of 15 years, starting from January 04, 2018 for setting up of LNG storage and
regasification services at Port Qasim, Karachi for Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL).

Computer software are subject to amartization based on straight line basis over their usefu! life whereas the cost
of settlement resulting in award of contract to the group for setting up of LNG storage and regasification services
at Port Qasim, Karachi for Pakistan LNG Terminals Limited (PLTL) are subject to amortization over the life of
contract over straight line basis. Amortization on additions during the year is charged from the month in which
an asset is acquired or capitalized, while no amortization is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed
off.
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5.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is
any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to
determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognized, as an expense in the
statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to disposal and
value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a pre tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the
assets for which the estimate of future cash flows have not been adjusted. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows {cash-
generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized previously. Reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of profit or
{oss.

Y

5.5 Financial Instruments
5.5.1 Measurement of financlal asset - it el hAS TS Nt S T
Initial Measurement
The group classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH};
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

- measured at amortized cost.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition, except FVTPL which is measured at fair value.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification, as follows:
Debt Investments at FVOC

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income. Interest / markup income calculated using the effective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. On
de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss.

Equity Investments at FVOLE

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or foss, Dividends are
recognized as income in the statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment.
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"Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest
markup or dividend income, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognized on trade date i.e. date on which the group
becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans
and receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
active markets and includes trade debts, advances, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

Derecognition

The group derecognizes the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred assets.

5.5.2 Measurement of Financial liabllities
Initial Measurement
Financial liabilities are classified in the following categories:

- fair value through profit or loss; and
- other finandial liabilities.

The group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are
recognized initially at fair value and, in case of cther financial liabilities also include directly attributable
transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss. The
group has not designated any financial liability upon recognition as being at fair value through profit or

Other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Gain and losses are recognized in statement
of profit or loss, when the habilities are derecognized as well as through effective interest rate

Derecognition
The group derecognizes financial liabilities when and only when the group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expire.
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5.6

5.7

5.5.3 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only
when the group has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the group intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in narmal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the group or the counter parties.

5.5.4 Impairment of financial assets : it ) itk T e b R

The group recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses {ECLs) in respect of financial assets measured at
amortized cost. The group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument} has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. When determining
whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on
the group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due
for a reasonahle period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events
that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date [or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the group is exposed to credit risk. Loss allowances for financial assets measured
at amortized cost are deducted fram the gross carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is written off when the group has no reasonable expectations of recovering of a financial asset in
its entirety or a portion thereof. The group individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and
amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonabie expectation of recovery. The group expects no
significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are writien off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Share Capital =" : RS I F =

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable
1o the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, if any.

PR = — -

Trade Debts

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at original invoice amount which is the fair value of
consideration to be received in future and subsequently measured at cost as reduced by appropriate provision
for receivables considered to be doubtful. A provision is established when there is objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount
of provision is charged to profit and loss. Trade and other receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.

Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of trade and other receivables in foreign currency are added to the
carrying amount of the receivables.



